
Page | 1 

Apex Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, January 07, 2020 

 
   

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

Nicole L. Dozier, Mayor Pro Tempore 

Brett D. Gantt, Audra M. Killingsworth, Cheryl F. Stallings, 

and Terry Mahaffey, Council Members 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 

Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

Laurie L. Hohe, Town Attorney 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Apex Town Council 

scheduled for Tuesday, January 07, 2020, at 

6:00 PM will be held in the Council Chamber of 

Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street.  The meeting 

will adjourn when all business is concluded or at 

10:00 PM, whichever comes first. 

 

COMMENCEMENT 
       

 

Call to Order  :  Invocation  :  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
       

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
       

 

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,  

and without discussion.  If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item  

may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.  The Mayor will present the  

Consent Agenda to be set prior to taking action on the following items: 

 

CN1 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to approve Minutes of the December 17, 2019 Regular Town Council Meeting 

CN2 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to approve Apex Tax Report dated November 6, 2019 

CN3 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert 

Motion to appoint the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Environmental Advisory Board and appoint a 

member of Town Council to serve as liaison to the Board.  

CN4 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to 

accept the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date 

of Public Hearing on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Iron 



Page | 2 

Gate Subdivision properties located at 1003, 1005, 1006, 1007, 1008, 1009, 1010, 1011, 1012, 1013, 

1014, 1016, 1017, 1018, 1020, 1021, 1022, 1023, 1026, 1027, 1029, 1037, 1038, 1039, 1040, 1041, 

1042, 1043, 1044, 1045, 1046, 1047, 1048, 1049, 1050, 1052, 1053 & 1055, Irongate Drive, 1735, 1801 

& 1805, Tingen Road, 2001 & 2002 Reedy Court, 3001, 3002, 3003, 3004, 3005 & 3006 River Circle 

and 2701 Veridea Parkway, Annexation #672 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

CN5 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to 

accept the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date 

of Public Hearing on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Robert 

and Amy Rossi (existing single-family dwelling) property containing 2.87 acres located at 7109 

Beaver Trail, Annexation #683 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

CN6 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Motion to approve Ordinance to remove the Historic Landmark status for the property located 

at 4525 Green Level West Road in compliance with North Carolina General Statue 160A-400.4 

through 160A-400.15.  

CN7 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Motion to approve Ordinance to designate the property located at 2708 Olive Chapel Road a 

Historic Landmark in compliance with North Carolina General Statue 160A-400.4 through 160A-

400.15.  

CN8 Sarah Rayfield, Senior Planner 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the January 21, 2020 Town Council Meeting regarding Rezoning 

Application #19CZ12 Kissena Lane PUD. The applicant, Hector Cuales, seeks to rezone 

approximately 1.74 acres located at 0 & 1105 Tingen Road (PINs 0741361302, 0741269237, & 

0741268380) from Residential Agricultural (RA) and High Density Single-family Residential (HDSF) 

to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ).  

CN9 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case #19CZ20, 

Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC., petitioners for the property located at 2708 Blazing Trail 

Drive.  

CN10 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the January 21, 2020 Town Council Meeting regarding an 

amendment to the 2045 Land Use Map and Rezoning Application #19CZ24 Upchurch-Williams 

House. The applicant, Cara Powell, seeks to amend the 2045 Land Use Map from Medium/High 

Density Residential to Office Employment and to rezone approximately 5.50 acres for the 



Page | 3 

property located at 7213 Roberts Road, from Rural Residential (RR) to Office and Institutional-

Conditional Zoning (O&I-CZ). 

CN11 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager  

Motion to approve and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same for an Assumption of 

Agreement between the Town of Apex and North Carolina Department of Transportation.   

CN12 Vance Holloman, Finance Officer and Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Motion to approve Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9 which appropriates $80,000 in the 

Water and Sewer Fund to pay legal fees in connection with Rubin vs. Town of Apex.   

CN13 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager  

Motion to approve and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same for an Encroachment 

Agreement between the Town and property owner, Matthew Glen Pittman, regarding Wake 

County, NC, PIN#0723-15-1627 , Lot 125, Lake Castleberry Phase 3, Book of Maps 2018, Page 02346, 

205 Glenvale Street, Apex, NC, 27523.         

CN14 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager  

Motion to approve and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same for an Encroachment 

Agreement between the Town and property owner, MREC DT Beaver Creek, LLC, regarding 

Wake County, NC, PIN#0732-45-3603, Lot 6 Hempstead at Beaver Creek Phase 3 as shown and 

recorded in Book of Maps 2018, Page 00539, 1900 Creekside Landing Drive, Apex, NC 27502.    

CN15 Russell H. Dalton, PE , Senior Transportation Engineer 

Motion to approve Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 and Capital Project Ordinance 

Amendment No. 9 appropriating $144,950 in the Street Improvements Fund for traffic signals at  

South Salem Street at Tingen Road/Lynch Street and  Old US 1 at New Hill Olive Chapel 

Road/New Hill Holleman Road 

CN16 Michael Deaton, Water Resources Director 

Motion to award a water main construction contract to North State Water and Sewer, Inc and 

to authorize the Town Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the Town.  

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       

 

Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the Agenda prior to 

taking action 

 

 

 



Page | 4 

PUBLIC FORUM 
       

 

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  The speaker is requested not to 

address an item that appears as a Public Hearing scheduled on the Regular Agenda.  The Mayor will recognize 

those who would like to speak at the appropriate time.  Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak 

for the entire group.  Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak. 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
       

 

PH1 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Public Hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – 

Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Crescent Apex, LLC (Linden Subdivision) property 

containing 4.513 acres located at Linden Grove Drive & Olive Chapel Road, Annexation #679 

into the Town’s corporate limits. 

PH2 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Public Hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – 

Apex Town Council’s intent to annex James and Jennifer Davis, Charles Catlette Jr., Martha B. 

Catlette Revocable Trust and Jennifer Davis (Courtyards on Holt) property containing 26.897 

acres located at 0, 1337 and 1345 Holt Road, 305 and 313 Catlette Street, Annexation #680 into 

the Town’s corporate limits. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
       

 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
       

 

UB1 Nicole Dozier, Mayor Pro Tem 

Possible motion to amend the 2020 Calendar of Town Council meetings. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
       

 

NB1 Tom Colwell, Chairman, Public Art Committee 

Possible motion to support and approve 3 Public Art projects 



Page | 5 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
       

 

 

 

WORK SESSION 
       

 

WS1 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager and Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Work Session to discuss the future of Richardson Road given the conservation easement along 

the planned road alignment of this critical roadway in the Town’s Transportation Plan.  

WS2 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Discussion of possible mitigation measures to address concerns shared by residents who live near 

the site of the new Electric Operation Center in order to provide direction to staff on how to 

proceed with construction. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       

 

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Minutes of the December 17, 2019 Regular Town Council Meeting 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

N/A 

 

Attachments 

 Minutes of the December 17, 2019 Council Meeting 



Page | 1 

Apex Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, December 17, 2019 

 
   

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

Nicole L. Dozier, Mayor Pro Tempore 

Brett D. Gantt, Audra M. Killingsworth, Cheryl F. Stallings, 

and Terry Mahaffey, Council Members 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 

Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

Laurie L. Hohe, Town Attorney 

 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Apex Town Council 

scheduled for Tuesday, December 17, 2019, at 

7:00 p.m. was held in the Council Chamber of 

Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 

 

COMMENCEMENT 
       

 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order, Pastor David Garcia of Focus Church gave the Invocation, 

and Mayor Gilbert led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
       

 

PR1 Keith McGee, Fire Chief 

Introduction of Assistant Fire Chief Jeff Harrison to Town Council 

Chief McGee presented Assistant Fire Chief Harrison’s background.  He spoke briefly about the search for 

this new position and stated why he feels that we have been fortunate to get the best of the best in the 

field. 

 

PR2 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert 

Presentation to the Apex Cougars Pop Warner PeeWee football 2019 team 

Mayor Gilbert spoke about Coach Clint Rogers and his contributions to the school, team, and community 

before reading a Letter of Honor that he presented to the Coach.  The Coach presented Mayor Gilbert 

with a game ball.  Monica Johnson, Commissioner, presented Mayor Gilbert with a token of  appreciation.   

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
       

 

CN1 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Minutes of the December 3, 2019 Organizational Meeting of the Apex Town Council 

 



Page | 2 

CN2 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert 

Appointments to the Planning Board, Board of Adjustment, Environmental Advisory Board, and 

Bee City Committee 

CN3 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, Certificate of Sufficiency by 

the Town Clerk, and Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing on the Question of Annexation – 

Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Crescent Apex, LLC (Linden Subdivision) property containing 

4.513 acres located at Linden Grove Drive & Olive Chapel Road, Annexation #679 into the Town’s 

corporate limits 

CN4 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, Certificate of Sufficiency by 

the Town Clerk, and Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing on the Question of Annexation – 

Apex Town Council’s intent to annex James and Jennifer Davis, Charles Catlette Jr., Martha B. 

Catlette Revocable Trust and Jennifer Davis (Courtyards on Holt) property containing 26.897 acres 

located at 0, 1337 and 1345 Holt Road, 305 and 313 Catlette Street, Annexation #680 into the 

Town’s corporate limits 

CN5 Matt Echols, Utilities Engineer 

Sewer rehabilitation contract to Insituform Technologies, LLC and authorization for the Town 

Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the town.  

CN6 Dennis Brown 

Contract and authorization for the Town Manager to execute contract with Construction 

Manager at Risk, J M Thompson, in amount of $181,710.00 (for the pre-construction fee only) for 

the new Pleasant Park Project. Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) will be developed and added 

to this contract by an amendment after subcontractor bidding is completed. 

CN7 Vance Holloman, Finance Director & Dennis Brown, Construction Project Manager 

Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-8 and Contract Amendment #1 for the 

construction of the Apex Senior Center and authorize the Town Manager to execute same 

CN8 Jose Martinez, Public Work & Transportation Director 

Implementation of software in current fiscal year (FY 19/20) and authorization for the Town 

Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the town 

CN9 Russell H. Dalton, PE, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Ordinance amending Section 20-164 with the addition of subsection (36) to enforce a No Parking 

restriction along the south side of Olive Street from S Elm Street to S Hughes Street 

 



Page | 3 

CN10 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Resolution to “Abandon portions of Existing Public Utility Easements” as shown on its attached plat 

CN11 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Resolution authorizing the “Contract Between the State of North Carolina and the Towns of Apex 

and Cary for Water Supply storage in B. Everett Jordan Lake” and authorization for the Town 

Manager to execute an agreement substantially like the Contract and to provide such notices 

and take such actions as Contract contemplates 

CN12 Drew Havens, Town Manager 

Apex Farmers’ Market to utilize a portion of their Town appropriation in FY 2019-20 for management 

services 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council Member  

Gantt made the motion; Council Member Dozier seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion to adopt the Regular Meeting Agenda.  Council Member  

Dozier made the motion; Council Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

PUBLIC FORUM 
       

 

Diane Long expressed interest in a way to welcome newcomer’s to the area.  People are moving here 

from all over the country and there should be programs in place to inform them about the history of the 

town.  Apex is a role model, Ms. Long exampling the revitalization of downtown.  She has ideas as to how 

she can go forward with her ideas to welcome newcomers. 

 

Nick Bryant was concerend about the early start time of Council meetings in 2020.  He felt 6:00 p.m. was 

too early for those who work and need to tend to children, especially for a citizen who likes to attend and 

participate.   

 

Yume Iwakura, a junior at Apex High School, spoke about lights at Apex Community Park on the basketball 

courts.  She felt it unfair that these courts are not lighted.  After contacting the Mayor, she was informed 

plans are already in motion to address the situation.  She asked those playing on the basketball courts if 

lights would be appreciated, and the answer was ‘yes’.  Ms. Iwakura asked for the installation of solar 



Page | 4 

panels for the lights as they would be a cheaper option.  Ms. Iwakura thanked the Mayor and Town 

Manager.  She was grateful her concern was being addressed. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
       
 

PH1 Amanda Morrell, Landscape Architect - Stantec with Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning 

Manager – Town of Apex 

Adoption of the Downtown Plan 

Ms. Morrell presented the draft of the Plan (incorporated by reference).  She explained what the Plan 

represented and then outlined its facets, commenting on each chapter contained therein.  Focus and 

public meetings were conducted, surveys were sent to citizens, there was a four day charette – all 

allowing  the community to develop the Plan with them.  Ms. Morrell thanked all those who touched the 

process, which only made it better.   

 

Ms. Morrell stated the Plan functions as three smaller districts, and she described how to tie the three 

districts together.  A Housing Market Study was conducted, and Ms. Morrell outlined the results of that 

Study.  A Parking Study was done and an analysis presented.  The data did not support the construction 

of a parking deck at this time.  A cost analysis was done should a deck be planned for in the future.  

 

Ms. Morrell outlined the Plan’s Nine Key Goals and shared their recommendations.  She summarized the 

public comments.  The Planning Board recommended approval of the Plan.   

 

Ms. Morrell thanked the Town for having the opportunity to design this Plan for the community. 

 

Ms. Morrell answered Council questions related to Shangri La residents being included in the process and 

if feedback had been received by them, the impact of schools with increased housing, possible re-

evaluation of the small town character overlay district due to the proposed housing, zoning, water shed 

and flooding standards, housing for diverse incomes, more retail businesses in downtown, and youth 

involvement in the process.   

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.   

 

Shane Reese, representing the Apex Downtown Business Association, stated they supported the Plan.  

They saw it as an opportunity not just for the businesses but for a place to make family memories and to 

protect some of the small businesses.  He spoke about how the business people are just like everyone else, 

particularly in the sense that most of them do not own the buildings they are in.   



Page | 5 

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Killingsworth made the motion to adopt  

the presented Plan; Council Member Dozier seconded the motion. 

 

Council complimented all who were involved in the process.  Council stated she was impressed with the 

amount of work which went into the process. 

 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH2 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 

Rezoning Application #19CZ20 2708 Blazing Trail Drive. The applicant, Jones & Cnossen 

Engineering, PLLC., seeks to rezone approximately 2.00 acres located at 2708 Blazing Trail Drive 

from Rural Residential (RR) to Medium Density-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ) 

Staff oriented Council to the site.  A neighborhood meeting was held.  Staff outlined conditions which 

have not been commonly offered.  The Planning Board unanimously recommended approval as did staff 

with the offered conditions. 

 

Staff answered Council questions related to sidewalks, and lot sizes. 

 

Peter Cnossen, representing the applicant, thanked staff for their assistance.  He stated the added 

elements are consistent with current standards.  Mr. Cnossen spoke about the greenway trail and his 

speaking with the HOA regarding this trail.  He outlined access and lot sizes and answered Council 

questions related to location of the property and its surrounding environment.   

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.  With no one wishing to speak, Mayor Gilbert declared 

the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Mahaffey made the motion to  

approve the rezoning; Council Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH3 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Removal of the Historic Landmark status for the property located at 4525 Green Level West Road 

in compliance with North Carolina General Statute 160A-400.4 through 160A-400.15 



Page | 6 

Staff stated this historic structure was completely destroyed by fire.  The family wished the historic 

designation removed in order to rebuild.   

 

Gary Roth, President of Capital Area Preservation, presented background on the dwelling.  He presented 

the WCHPC staff recommendations.  Vice Chair of the WCHPC, Jeff Hastings, stated they unanimously 

recommended removing the historic designation. 

 

Mr.  Roth answered Council questions related to fire prevention in these older, private homes. 

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.  With no one wishing to speak, Mayor Gilbert declared 

the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Dozier made the motion to remove  

the Landmark status; Council Member Mahaffey seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH4 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Designating the property located at 2708 Olive Chapel Road a Historic Landmark in compliance 

with North Carolina General Statute 160A-400.4 through 160A-400.15 

Staff oriented Council to the property, giving background on rehabilitation of the property.  The 

community recognizes the house as an important historical place.  Staff recommended approval. 

 

Gary  Roth,  representing the Alsey Thomas Olive House, presented history of the property, the family, and 

how the family was very involved in the community.  He detailed the architectural elements of the home.  

Mr.  Roth presented the Significance Statement.  The Society recommended approval.  Jeff Hastings 

stated they also recommended approval. 

 

Mr. Roth answered Council questions as to how to get an historic designation. 

 

Mike Ingram, property owner, stated he is proud of the house and considers it a privilege to be able to 

work on it.  He appreciated Council’s consideration of the designation. 

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.  With no one wishing to speak, Mayor Gilbert declared 

the Public Hearing closed. 

 



Page | 7 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Dozier made the motion to approve the 

designation; Council Member Gantt seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH5 Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

Resolution adopting the 2020-2025 Wake County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Staff oriented Council to the Federal Law, and the history of the changes and coordination of the Plan 

(incorporated by reference).  Federal reviews of the Plan have been completed and the Plan complies.  

The Planning Board unanimously recommended approval as did staff. 

 

Staff answered Council questions related to the medical fragility of individuals and getting supplies to 

those individuals in case of an emergency, how the information was commented on and coordinated, 

high flood prone areas, and the Plan being a guiding list. 

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.  With no one wishing to speak, Mayor Gilbert declared 

the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Killingsworth made the motion to  

adopt the Resolution; Council Member Dozier seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH6 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Tim and 

Lauren Medlin property containing 1.929 acres located at 6517 Roosondall Court, Annexation 

#681 into the Town’s corporate limits 

Staff oriented Council to the site.  Staff recommended approval of the request. 

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.  With no one wishing to speak, Mayor Gilbert declared 

the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Killingsworth made the motion to  

adopt the Ordinance; Council Member Stallings seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH7 Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

To receive citizen input regarding the formulation of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Budget 



Page | 8 

Staff stated this was not a requirement of the budget process, rather an opportunity for citizens to provide 

input prior to staff putting numbers together.  Council questions were answered about this being the 

proper time for citizen input and capital projects.  Staff stated the various ways in which citizen input could 

be forwarded to staff.  Any comments received would be forwarded to Council.  Mailers would be sent 

to the public in addition to social media outreach.   

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open. 

 

Bridget Taylor had questions regarding money in the past budget:  cemetery funds which seem to her to 

be a slush fund and retiree spending with special conditions for police officers.  She hoped there would 

be no more money taken out of the budget for retirees.   

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing closed. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
       
 

No items for consideration. 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
       
 

No items for consideration. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
       
 

No items for consideration. 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
       
 

No items for consideration. 

 

 

WORK SESSION 
       
 

No items for consideration. 

 

 



Page | 9 

ADJOURNMENT 
       
 

With there being no further business and with no objection from Council, Mayor Gilbert declared the 

meeting adjourned. 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Apex Tax Report dated November 6, 2019 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

In regular session on December 2, 2019, the Wake County Board of Commissioners approved the Apex 

Tax Report dated November 6, 2019. 

 

Attachments 

 Tax Reports 







 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert 

Department(s): Governing Body 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to appoint the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Environmental Advisory Board and appoint a member of 

Town Council to serve as liaison to the Board.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

This motion appoints a Chair and Vice-Chair for the new Environmental Advisory Board as required by the 

Ordinance creating the Board.  It also assigns a member of Town Council to serve as liaison as required.  

 

Chair Harold Lagerbach  01/01/2020 – 12/31/2020 

Vice-Chair Katie Schaaf   01/01/2020 – 12/31/2020 

 

And 

Council Member Brett Gantt to serve as the Council Liaison to Environmental Advisory Board  

 

Attachments 

 None 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing on the 

Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Iron Gate Subdivision properties located at 

1003, 1005, 1006, 1007, 1008, 1009, 1010, 1011, 1012, 1013, 1014, 1016, 1017, 1018, 1020, 1021, 1022, 1023, 1026, 

1027, 1029, 1037, 1038, 1039, 1040, 1041, 1042, 1043, 1044, 1045, 1046, 1047, 1048, 1049, 1050, 1052, 1053 & 

1055, Irongate Drive, 1735, 1801 & 1805, Tingen Road, 2001 & 2002 Reedy Court, 3001, 3002, 3003, 3004, 3005 

& 3006 River Circle and 2701 Veridea Parkway, Annexation #672 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation.  Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  The 

Public Hearing would be scheduled for the January 21, 2020 Town Council meeting. 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Petition 

 Legal Description 

 Vicinity Map 

 Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 

 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 

 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 







































































    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 
Annexation Petition #672 

Iron Gate Subdivision 
 
 
 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160-A 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of her 
investigation. 
 
This the 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
  



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 
 

Annexation Petition #672 
Iron Gate Subdivision 

 
 

 
To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
    I,  Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 
accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                      
________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

                                                           Town Clerk 
      

    
 
 
 
         (Seal) 
 
 

 
 







































































































 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 
Annexation Petition #610 

200 Howell Road 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 
been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 
has been made; 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 
North Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6:00 o’clock p.m. on the 21st 
day of January 2020. 
 
      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 
 
      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of said public hearing. 
 
     This the 7th day of January 2020. 
 

 
                ________________________________________ 
              Jacques K. Gilbert Mayor  
 
ATTEST:                        
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing on the 

Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Robert and Amy Rossi (existing single-family 

dwelling) property containing 2.87 acres located at 7109 Beaver Trail, Annexation #683 into the Town’s 

corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation.  Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  The 

Public Hearing would be scheduled for the January 21, 2020 Town Council meeting. 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Petition 

 Legal Description 

 Vicinity Map 

 Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 

 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 

 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

















    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 
Annexation Petition #683 

7109 Beaver Trail 
 
 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160-A 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of her 
investigation. 
 
This the 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
  



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 
 

Annexation Petition #683 
7109 Beaver Trail 

 
 
 

 
To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
    I,  Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 
accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                      
________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

                                                           Town Clerk 
      

    
 
 
 
         (Seal) 
 
 

 
 



1/3/2020 Account Summary - 0142622

services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0142622&map=0731&sheet=&block=19&lot=5228&stype=pin&spg=1 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0142622 PIN #  0731195228
  
Location Address Property Description
7109 BEAVER TRL LO3 BEAVER CREEK SUB BM1985-450

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
ROSSI, ROBERT ALAN & AMY M
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
7109 BEAVER TRL
APEX NC 27502-9549

Property Location Address
7109 BEAVER TRL
APEX NC 27502-9549
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 646-00000-0038
Map/Scale 0731 01
VCS 03AP010
City
Fire District 23
Township BUCKHORN
Land Class R-<10-HS
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning RR
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 2.87
Permit Date 1/29/2007
Permit # 0000072454

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 6/11/1985
Book & Page 03495  0929
Revenue Stamps 27.00
Pkg Sale Date
Pkg Sale Price
Land Sale Date 6/11/1985
Land Sale Price $27,000
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 1
Recycle Units 1
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area 2,021

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $145,000
Bldg. Value Assessed $206,246
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $351,246

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2016, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2016 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2016 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 
Annexation Petition #683 

7109 Beaver Trail 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 
been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 
has been made; 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 
North Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6:00 o’clock p.m. on the 21st 
day of January 2020. 
 
      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 
 
      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of said public hearing. 
 
     This the 1st day of August 2017. 
 

 
                ________________________________________ 
              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:                        
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Ordinance to remove the Historic Landmark status for the property located at 4525 

Green Level West Road in compliance with North Carolina General Statue 160A-400.4 through 160A-400.15.  

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval  

 

Item Details 

 

 

Attachments 

 Ordinance  



APEX TOWN COUNCIL 
JANUARY 7, 2020 

 
ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF THE DESIGNATION OF THE JAMES MADISON WILLIAMS 

HOUSE AT 4525 GREEN LEVEL WEST ROAD AS AN APEX HISTORIC LANDMARK 
 
        WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council recognizes its authority to repeal an ordinance of designation of a 
Historic Landmark in accordance with G.S. 160A-400.5; and 
 
        WHEREAS, the owner has followed the appropriate procedures in applying for removal of the Historic 
Landmark designation of her property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the State Historic Preservation Office has reviewed the request for removal of the Historic 
Landmark designation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has, after notice, held a public hearing in the Apex Town Hall, 73 
Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina, on the 17th day of December, 2019, concerning the removal of the Historic 
Landmark designation of the James Madison Williams House; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the James Madison Williams House is no longer of special 
significance in terms of history, architecture, cultural importance, design, setting and workmanship, and no longer 
meets the requirements of NCGS160A- 400.5; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED THAT THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL REMOVES THE 

DESIGNATION OF THE FOLLOWING AS AN APEX HISTORIC LANDMARK: 
 
Property: James Madison Williams House  
Location:  4525 Green Level West, Apex  
PIN:  0713943738  
Owner: Eliza C. Williams 

 
A Certificate of Appropriateness will no longer be required for any alterations to the house or property.  
 
Deferred taxes related to the landmark designation, if any, for the previous three fiscal years are due and payable 
in accordance with GS 105-277.1F when the property loses the benefit of this designation.  
 
All owners of the property hereinabove described, whose identity and addresses can be ascertained by the 
exercise of due diligence, shall be sent, by certified mail, a copy of this ordinance. 
 
This ordinance shall be indexed after the property owner’s name in the grantor and grantee indexes in the Office 
of the Registrar of Deeds of Wake County. 
 
 

 
Motion by Council Member ___________________________________ 
 
Seconded by Council Member _________________________________ 
 
 With  _____Council Member(s) voting “aye.” 
 With  _____Council Member(s) voting “no.” 
 
 This the 7th day of January, 2020 
 
        TOWN OF APEX 
 
       _________________________ 
              Mayor 
 



ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
  Town Clerk 
 
 
This instrument approved as to form by: 
 
 
______________________________ 
                   Town Attorney 
 
 
Ordinance No. __________________ 
 
 
 
   
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAKE COUNTY 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of an ordinance duly adopted by the Apex Town 
Council, at a meeting held January 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. in the Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North 
Carolina. 
 
 
____________________________ 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAKE COUNTY 
 
I, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that Donna Hosch, Town Clerk, personally appeared before 
me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing certification for the purposes therein 
expressed. 
 
WITNESS my hand and seal this ____ day of ___________ 2020. 
 
 
My commission expires ____________________. 

 

 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Ordinance to designate the property located at 2708 Olive Chapel Road a Historic 

Landmark in compliance with North Carolina General Statue 160A-400.4 through 160A-400.15.  

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Detail 

 

Attachments 

 Ordinance  



APEX TOWN COUNCIL 
JANUARY 7, 2020 

 
DESIGNATING THE ALSEY THOMAS OLIVE HOUSE 

IN THE PLANNING JURISDICTION OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
A HISTORIC LANDMARK 

 
        WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the State of North Carolina authorized the creation of a countywide 
Historic Preservation Commission for Wake County and otherwise provided for the preservation of certain historic 
sites and buildings by the passage of Part 3C, Chapter 160A, Article 19 of the North Carolina General Statutes; 
and 
 
        WHEREAS, the Wake County Historic Preservation Commission has made an investigation and 
recommended the following property be designated an historic landmark; and 
 
        WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources has made an analysis that the following 
property is eligible to be designated a historic landmark; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 17th day of December, 2019, a public hearing was held in the Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter 
Street, Apex, North Carolina, by the Apex Town Council to determine whether the hereinafter described property 
should be designated a historic landmark; and 

 
WHEREAS, all requirements of Part 3C, Chapter 160A, Article 19 of the North Carolina General Statutes, 

preceding the adoption of this ordinance, have been met. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

 
Section 1.  The property designated as the Alsey Thomas Olive House, owned by Michael A. Ingram, be and is 
declared an Apex Historic Landmark.  Said property being more particularly described as follows: 
 

Asley Thomas Olive House located on 0.66 acres at 2708 Olive Chapel Road, Apex, 27502 (Wake 
County PIN # 0721392386, REID # 0458130). 

 
Section 2.  Those elements that are integral to its historical, architectural, archaeological significance or any 
combination thereof are as follows: 

 
All exterior design elements, form, features, materials of the buildings, the landscape and any 
archaeological resources within the designated landmark boundary of 0.66 acres.  
 

Section 3.  No building, site, structure, or object that is designated in this ordinance located on the hereinbefore 
described site may be altered, restored, moved, remodeled, or reconstructed so that a change in design, material, 
or outer appearance occurs unless and until a certificate of appropriateness is obtained from the Wake County 
Historic Preservation Commission or its successors. 
 
Section 4.  No building, site, structure, or object that is designated in this ordinance located on the hereinbefore 
described site may be demolished unless and until either approval of demolition is obtained from the Wake 
County Historic Preservation Commission or a period of three hundred sixty-five (365) days has elapsed following 
final review by the Wake County Historic Preservation Commission of a request for demolition (or any longer 
period required by N.C.G.S. 1 60A-400.14 as it may be amended hereafter). 
 
Section 5.  All owners of the property hereinabove described, whose identity and addresses can be ascertained 
by the exercise of due diligence, shall be sent by certified mail a copy of this ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  This ordinance shall be indexed after the property owner's name in the grantor and grantee indexes in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County. 
 
Section 7.  The Town of Apex and the Wake County Historic Preservation Commission are hereby authorized to 
have erected an appropriate sign on the site herein described setting forth the fact that said site has been 
designated a historic landmark by action of the Apex Town Council and the Wake County Historic Preservation 
Commission. 
 



Section 8.   In the event any building, site, structure, or object is demolished in accordance with the ordinances of 
Wake County, this ordinance may be repealed. 
 
Section 9.  Any violation of this ordinance shall be unlawful as by law provided. 
 

 
Motion by Council Member ___________________________________ 
 
Seconded by Council Member _________________________________ 
 
 With  _____Council Member(s) voting “aye.” 
 With  _____Council Member(s) voting “no.” 
 
 This the 7th day of January, 2020 
 
        TOWN OF APEX 
 
        _________________________ 
               Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
  Town Clerk 
 
 
This instrument approved as to form by: 
 
 
______________________________ 
                   Town Attorney 
 
 
Ordinance No. _________________ 
 
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAKE COUNTY 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of an ordinance duly adopted by the Apex Town 
Council, at a meeting held January 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. in the Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North 
Carolina. 
 
____________________________ 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAKE COUNTY 
 
I, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that Donna Hosch, Town Clerk, personally appeared before 
me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing certification for the purposes therein 
expressed. 
 
WITNESS my hand and seal this ____ day of ___________ 2020. 
 
 
My commission expires ____________________. 

 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Sarah Rayfield, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning Department 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the January 21, 2020 Town Council Meeting regarding Rezoning Application 

#19CZ12 Kissena Lane PUD. The applicant, Hector Cuales, seeks to rezone approximately 1.74 acres located 

at 0 & 1105 Tingen Road (PINs 0741361302, 0741269237, & 0741268380) from Residential Agricultural (RA) and 

High Density Single-family Residential (HDSF) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ).  

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval.  

Item Details 

 

 

Attachments 

 Vicinity Map 

 Application 





PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION   

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to 
third parties. 

Application #:    Submittal Date:  

Fee Paid $  Check #  
 

Last Updated: February 27, 2019 

PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

Project Name:  

Address(es):  

PIN(s)  

  Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Designation:  

Requested 2045 LUM Designation:  

See next page for LUM amendment 

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

 Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

 Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

 Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  
 
 
 

 

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

  

  

Page 3 of 14 PUD-CZ & 2045 LUM Amendment Application





















AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  

 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

 

 

Page 13 of 18 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application





















 

 

Kissena Lane 
 

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
 
 

PD PLAN 
Rezoning Case #19CZ12 

 
June 3, 2019 

Revised July 12, 2019 
Revised August 8, 2019 
Revised August 20, 2019 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Project Contact: 
Hector Cuales 

33085 Whittingham Drive 
New Hill, NC 27562 

 
 

Civil Engineering & Land Planning: 
Jeff Roach, P.E. 

Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC 

 
  



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 2  

 

Table of Contents 
 

Section 1: Table of Contents 

Section 2: Vicinity Map 

Section 3: Project Data 

Section 4: Purpose Statement 

Section 5: Permitted Uses 

Section 6: Description, Density and Dimensional Standards 

Section 7: Architectural Standards 

Section 8: Parking and Loading 

Section 9: Resource Conservation Area (RCA) 

Section 10: Landscaping 

Section 11: Signage 

Section 12: Public Facilities 

Section 13: Pedestrian Circulation System and Amenities 

Section 14: Parks and Recreation 

Section 15: Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 

Section 16: Stormwater Management 

Section 17: Phasing 

Section 18: Plan Consistency 

Section 19: Compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 

 

Exhibits 

  



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 3  

 
Section 2: Vicinity Map 
Kissena is an assembly of three (3) properties located at the termination of Kissena Lane; south of 
Sparta Lane, directly west of West Haven Apartments and Tingen Road. The property is bordered 
to the north by existing residential properties; to the east and south of by Perry Farms Subdivision; 
and apartments to the west. 
  



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 4  

 
Section 3: Project Data 
Project name: Kissena Lane Extension 
 
Property Owner: 

Hector Cuales  
1105 Tingen Road 
Apex, NC 27502 
PINs 0741-31-1302 (1.17 acres) 
         0741-26-9237 (0.07 acres) 
         0741-26-8380 (0.50 acres) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
     
Project Contact: 
Hector Cuales 
3308 Whittingham Drive 
New Hill, NC 27562 
hectorcual@gmail.com   
  
 

Prepared by: 
Jeff Roach, P.E. 
Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC 
1125 Apex Peakway  
Apex, NC 27502 
(919) 439-0100 
jroach@peakengineeringdesign.com 

 
Zoning: 
Existing Zoning: High Density-Single Family (HD-SF) and  
 Rural Agricultural (RA) 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit Development – Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 
2045 Land Use Map 
Existing Land Use Designation: Medium Density Residential (< 6.0 units/acre residential) 
Proposed Land Use: Medium Density Residential (< 5.8 units/acre residential) 
Total Property: 1.74 acres 
 
Legal descriptions for the properties being zoned are provided by Peak Engineering & Design, 
PLLC and has been assembled from available plats, deeds, and other Wake County GIS data. This 
information is public and provided within the zoning application packet. 
  



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 5  

 
Section 4: Purpose Statement 
Kissena Lane is a proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) with a maximum of 10 single family 
residential lots currently located inside the Apex town limits.  As part of the rezoning process, 
some of the properties will be required to annex, to be voted on by the Apex Town Council. The 
PUD parameters are outlined in UDO Section 2.3.4(F)(1)(a)(i - vi) and answered in various 
locations within the PD text document. 
 
The purpose of the PUD rezoning application is to develop a residential development that is 
compatible with the value, quality and character of the surrounding properties and developments. 
The standards included with the submittal provide for flexibility in the building design and lot 
sizes to accommodate various highly sought after products in the Apex market.  The targeted 
market for this project includes houses high in quality and lower in cost compared to other recent 
residential developments within the Town of Apex.  Items such as small lot sizes, building design, 
and other development components will be considered to make new homes within the Kissena 
Lane Extension affordable for persons with varying incomes.  Habitat for Humanity, or similar 
programs, which aid in the affordability of new homes will assist in the design and construction of 
the new homes.  100% of the dwelling units developed on the property shall be set at a price that, 
on average, is affordable to a household with an annual income of 70% of the Area Median Income 
for the respectively-sized household in the Raleigh, NC MSA, as determined by the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).    
 
The construction throughout the property will include streets, utilities, and landscaping while 
protecting the natural environment to the maximum extent, all of which will be done in accordance 
with current Town of Apex requirements. 
  
Permitted Uses* 
The rezoned lands may be use for the uses listed below. The permitted uses are subject to the 
limitation stated in UDO Section 4.2.2: 

1. Single family 
2. Accessory apartment 
3. Utility, minor 
4. Recreation facility – private 

5. Greenway 
6. Park, active 
7. Park, passive 

 
*100% of the dwelling units developed on the property shall be set at a price that, on average, is 
affordable to a household with an annual income of 70% of the Area Median Income for the 
respectively-sized household in the Raleigh, NC MSA, as determined by the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).   
 
  



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 6  

 
Section 5: Description, Density and Dimensional Standards 
The project will comply with the standards as established by UDO Section 5.1.3 or as noted within 
the PD Text for the project: 
 
Proposed maximum density: 5.80 units/acre 
 (includes R/W, Open Space and lots) 
 
Proposed Maximum Building Height: 36’  
 
Proposed Minimum Lot Width: 33’ 
 
Proposed Minimum Building Setbacks: 
 Front: 20’ 
 Side: 5’ 
 Rear: 10’  
 Percentage of Built Upon Area: 70% maximum  
 
Maximum number of lots: 10 lots 

** Porches, patios, decks and other structures may encroach into requirement building 
setbacks as permitted by the Town of Apex UDO. 
 

Section 6: Architectural Standards 
 
Single-family residential standards: 
1. Vinyl siding is permitted for exterior building materials. 
2. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater. This excludes porches, screen porches, bay 

windows, and decorative elements. 
3. Eaves shall project at least 8 inches from the wall of the structure. 
4. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 2 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  
 Windows 
 Bay window 
 Recessed window 
 Decorative window 
 Trim around the windows or decorative 

trim 
 Wrap around porch or side porch 
 Two or more building materials 
 Decorative brick/stone 

 Decorative trim 
 Decorative shake 
 Decorative air vents on gable 
 Decorative gable 
 Decorative cornice 
 Column 
 Portico 
 Balcony 
 Dormer 

5. House entrances may be placed at finished grade or a raised floor with crawl space. 
6. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 

around the windows. 
7. Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep.  
   



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 7  

 
Section 7: Parking and Loading 
Parking will be provided by parking pads and/or driveways and will comply with the Town of 
Apex UDO Section 8.3 for single family residential lots.  Residential driveways shall have a 
minimum width of 12’ and 20’ in length as measured from the back of the sidewalk or, where no 
sidewalk exists, the back of the curb, to count as required parking. 
 
Section 8: Resource Conservation Area (RCA) 
The project is required to meet UDO Section 8.1.2 for resource conservation area.  The project is 
located east of I-540 and is required to establish 20% Resource Conservation Area with an 
additional 2% RCA if mass graded.  The project will protect environmentally sensitive features to 
meet the RCA requirements. Final location and acreage will be provided during the Master 
Subdivision Plan submittal Process.  
 
Section 9: Landscaping 
Internal landscaping will comply with UDO section 8.2.4(A)(4) for street tree plantings, 
foundation plantings and tree preservation.  In lieu of required buffer plantings along the 
western, northern and southern property lines, adjacent to PINs 0741-26-8146, 0741-26-6052, 
0741-26-7486 and 0741-26-0405, a solid 6’ wood fence shall be installed.  A 50’ section of the 
fence will be removed with the extension of Kissena Lane in the future.  The location of the 
fence removal will be determined when Kissena Lane is extended beyond the project, into the 
adjacent property.  Buffering to the east will be provided by the existing stream buffer.  The 
project will maintain similar density and design of the existing development to the south.        
 
Section 10: Signage 
All signage will comply with the applicable standards and requirements of UDO Section 8.7. 
Signage for the residential development shall be coordinated with staff during the appropriate 
Master Subdivision Plan and/or Master Signage Plan approval. 
 
Section 11: Public Facilities 
The project’s construction will consist of the extension of public facilities to serve the site. All 
public facilities and infrastructure shall comply with the Town of Apex Sewer and Water Master 
Plans and the Town of Apex Standards and Specifications. Facilities include: 
 
Water: 
Water will be provided by connecting to an existing waterline along Kissena Lane.  The design 
team will coordinate with staff to locate and size the necessary extensions during the Master 
Subdivision and Construction Document review phases. 
 
Sanitary Sewer: 
Sanitary sewer will be provided by connecting to an existing sewer main at the end of Kissena 
Lane. The design shall be coordinated with Town of Apex staff during the Master Subdivision 
Plan and Construction Document phases. Extensions along natural draws are required per Town 
of Apex specifications. 
 
 



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 8  

 
Streets: 
The project is showing the extension of Kissena Drive north from the existing dead end to the 
properties northern boundary.  The development will stub a residential street to adjacent property 
owner to the north for future connections. No street stubs are provided east due to environmental 
feature or to the west due to existing development.  The final alignment of all internal streets will 
be coordinated with staff.  Per UDO Section 2.3.4, PUD developments commonly include sidewalk 
on both sides of the streets.  The existing Kissena Lane street stub does not include sidewalks on 
either site of the street.  To continue this design, and to reduce construction cost for affordability, 
sidewalks along the Kissena Lane Extension are not proposed.   
 
Other Utilities: 
Electric service shall be provided by the Town of Apex in conjunction with the appropriate staff. 
Gas, telephone, and cable shall be provided by the builder as coordinated with the appropriate 
utility companies. 
 
Transportation: 
A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was not required for this project.  There are no improvements to 
existing roads, signals or other transportation facilities proposed with this project. 
 
Section 12: Pedestrian Circulation System and Amenities 
To assist with the affordability of the new homes, the absence of sidewalk on Kissena Lane and 
the small nature of the project, sidewalks are not proposed with this project.   
 
Section 13: Parks and Recreation 
This Planned Development proposes less than 30 (or a maximum of 10) single family detached 
units so only a fee-in-lieu payment will be required per UDO Section 14.1.2 Exemptions.  The 
property abuts existing Public Greenway Easement for the future Big Brach Greenway, but with 
the limited number of units, the necessity to cross Big Branch Creek and impact to riparian buffer 
when access to the greenway would be within 350 ft or 0.07 mile, the project is not requested to 
accommodate a connection within the project boundaries 
 
Section 14: Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 
Kissena Lane is located within the Town’s Secondary Watershed Protection Overlay District. The 
properties are currently undeveloped and has one stream containing stream buffers. The design 
team will coordinate with staff to minimize impacts to the buffer during the Master Subdivision 
and Construction Document review phases.  Per FEMA FIRM Maps 3720074100J dated May 2, 
2006 there are no Special Hazard Flood Prone areas. No historical structures are identified within 
the property boundary pursuant to the North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office’s website. 
 
Section 15: Stormwater Management 
The project will not require a Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs). The project is small in nature 
with a disturbance of less than one (1) acre.  Per UDO Section 6.1, projects with a disturbance of 
1 acre or less do not require an SCM.   
   



 

August 20, 2019 Kissena Lane – Apex, NC 9  

 
Section 16: Phasing 
The project is small in nature and consists of single family homes, roadway extensions, utility 
services and other site design features which will all be constructed in one phase. For this reason, 
a phasing plan has not been included as part of the design. 
 
Section 17: Plan Consistency 
The proposed zoning for Kissena complies with the 2045 Land Use Map designation for this area 
as a medium density residential development.  Kissena Lane is a medium density development and 
will have an overall project density at or below 6.0 units/acre. The project will meet the 
requirements of the Transportation Master Plan, the Bike Apex Plan, the Parks, Recreation, 
Greenways, and Open Space Plan, along with other Town of Apex adopted plans which direct 
development, as amended from time-to-time. 
 

Section 18: Compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance 
Kissena Lane will comply with the relevant standards of the Town of Apex’s Unified Development 
Ordinance and other development related standards. Any deviation from standards shall be 
approved by staff, Planning Board, or Town Council representatives throughout the zoning and 
design development processes as required. 
 
EXHIBITS 
I. COVER SHEET (Sheet C000) 

The Cover Sheet contains contact information, vicinity map, site design guidelines, and 
required Town of Apex notes and descriptions. 

II. EXISTING CONDITIONS (Sheet C001) 
The existing conditions plan includes the base site items, zoning of adjacent properties, 
boundary, environmental features, and existing conditions around the property. 

III. CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN (Sheet C100) 
This sheet includes standard site notes, site infrastructure, vehicular connectivity locations, 
buffers, areas proposed for development. 

IV. CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN (Sheet C200) 
The Conceptual Utility Plan shows the preliminary location for connection to existing water, 
sewer, and stormwater as well as the existing infrastructure for said services. The final design 
will be completed to the Apex standards at the time of Master Subdivision submittal. 

 



KISSENA LANE
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

INDEX OF DRAWINGS:
C000 COVER SHEET

C001 EXISTING CONDITIONS

C100 OVERALL SITE PLAN

C105 OVERALL PHASING PLAN

C200 OVERALL UTILITY PLAN

DEVELOPER/OWNER
HECTOR CUALES
3308 WHITTINGHAM DRIVE
NEW HILL, NC  27562
E: HECTORCUAL@GMAIL.COM

ENGINEER/LAND PLANNER
PEAK ENGINEERING & DESIGN, PLLC
JEFF ROACH, P.E.
5448 APEX PEAKWAY #368
APEX, NC 27502
Phone (919) 439-0100
www.PeakEngineering.com

As Noted

© 2019 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
f
a
x
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
6
4
1
1

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

Planned Unit
Development

NC License #P-0673

June 3, 2019

180901

K
IS

SE
N

A
 L

A
N

E
11

05
 T

IN
G

E
N

 R
O

A
D

B
U

C
K

H
O

R
N

A
PE

X
, N

O
R

T
H

 C
A

R
O

L
IN

A
 2

75
02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

FOR REVIEW

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

1105 TINGEN ROAD
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA
PROJECT NUMBER: 180901

DATE: JUNE 3, 2019

VICINITY MAP
NO SCALE

N

XXX

COVER
SHEET

JR

C000

APEX PEAKWAY

PE
RR

Y 
RO

A
D

TIN
G

EN
 R

O
A

D

US H
WY 1

JAMES STREET

JAMES STREET

S.
 S

AL
EM

 S
TR

EE
T

A
PEX PEA

KW
A

Y

OLD IS HWY 1

W
EST W

ILLIAM
S STREETS. HUGHES STREET

SPARTA LN
ESTATE DR

RO
A

D

SH
A

C
KL

ET
O

NA
PEX

PEA
KW

A
Y

SITE INFORMATION:
Property Owner/Site Address PIN    REID Map Number Deeded Acreage Deed Book/Plat Book & Page

Hector Cuales 0741-26-8380 0052620 074110 0.5 DB 17272 PG 00548
0 Tingen Road
Apex, NC 27502

Hector Cuales 0741-26-9237 0247235 074110 0.07 DB 17272 PG 00548
0 Tingen Road
Apex, NC 27502

Hector Cuales 0741-36-1302 0059739 074110 1.17 DB 17673 PG 001611
1105 Tingen Road
Apex, NC 27502

Total Deeded Acreage: 1.74 acres

Existing Zoning: Rural Agricultural (RR), High Density-Single Family (HD-SF)

Proposed Zoning: PUD-CZ (Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning)

2045 Land Use Map: High Density Single Family

Existing Use: Vacant & Single Family

Proposed Uses: Single Family

Township: White Oak

Flood Zone Information: Firm Panel 3720074100J dated May 2, 2006 does not show the presence of flood zones on properties.

Watershed Information: Secondary Watershed Protection Overlay District, Big Branch Basin, Cape Fear River Basin.

Historical: Per the NC SHPO, no historical structures are located within the project boundary.

Design Standards:
Minimum Lot Width: 33'
Maximum Built Upon Area: 70%
Maximum Density: 5.80 Units per Acre
Maximum Number Lots: 10

Building Setbacks:
Front: 20'
Rear: 10'
Side: 5' min. (No Aggregate)
Side (Corner Lot): 5'

Maximum Density: 5.80 Units per Acre

Building:
Proposed Building Height: 36' maximum
Proposed Building Stories: 3 stories (maximum)

SITE

AERIAL MAP
NO SCALE N

SITE



As Noted

© 2019 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
f
a
x
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
6
4
1
1

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

Planned Unit
Development

NC License #P-0673

June 3, 2019

180901

K
IS

SE
N

A
 L

A
N

E
11

05
 T

IN
G

E
N

 R
O

A
D

B
U

C
K

H
O

R
N

A
PE

X
, N

O
R

T
H

 C
A

R
O

LI
N

A
 2

75
02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

FOR REVIEW

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JE

EXISTING
CONDITIONS

DW

C001SCALE:

EXISTING CONDITIONS
 1"= 60'C001

1

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 60 120

60'
N

NOTES:
1. THERE ARE NO CONTRIBUTING HISTORICAL STRUCTURES WITHIN THE PROJECT

BOUNDARY.
2. SUBJECT PROPERTIES KNOWN AS PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS: AS SHOWN ON

SHEET C000.
3. ALL OFF-SITE EASEMENTS SHALL BE ACQUIRED BY THE DEVELOPER AND THESE OFF-SITE

EASEMENTS SHALL BE RECORDED BY A DEED OF EASEMENT PRIOR TO UTILITY
INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION APPROVAL. THESE EASEMENTS SHALL BE DEDICATED
TO THE TOWN OF APEX AND LABELED "TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT".

4. NO PERSON SHALL PLACE ANY PART OF A STRUCTURE, ANY PERMANENT EQUIPMENT,
OR IMPOUNDMENT UPON TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS, PROHIBITED
STRUCTURES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: BUILDINGS, HOUSES, AIR
CONDITIONING UNITS, HEAT PUMP UNITS, DECKS, GARAGES, STORAGE/TOOL SHEDS,
SWIMMING POOLS, WALLS, RETAINING WALL MECHANISMS/APPURTENANCES AND
FENCES. UPON PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT,
FENCES MAY PERMITTED ACROSS EASEMENTS, PROVIDED THAT AN ACCESS GATE IS
INSTALLED FOR THE FULL WIDTH OF THE EASEMENT.

5. NO PERSON SHALL PLANT TREES, SHRUBS, OR OTHER PLANTS WITHIN A TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE PUBLIC
WORKS DEPARTMENT.

6. ANY AND ALL STREET SIGNS SHALL ONLY BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED BY THE TOWN
OF APEX.

7. FIRM PANEL 3720074100J EFFECTIVE 5-6-2006 DOES NOT SHOW THE PRESENCE OF
FLOOD ZONES ON PROPERTIES.

8. WATERSHED INFORMATION: SECONDARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT,
BIG BRANCH CREEK BASIN, CAPE FEAR RIVER BASIN.

BOUNDARY INFORMATION OBTAINED FROM WAKE COUNTY GIS, DEED AND PLAT
DESCRIPTIONS, APEX LIDAR, ADVANCED CIVIL DESIGN, AND OTHER AVAILABLE DATA
SOURCES. FINAL BOUNDARY AND SURVEY DOCUMENTS WILL BE PROVIDED DURING THE
MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN PHASE OF THE DEVELOPMENT.

PROJECT'S PERIMETER BOUNDARY

ENVIRONMENTAL FEATURES NOTE:
STREAM BUFFERS WERE OBTAINED FROM APEX WATERSHED PROTECTION
OVERLAY DISTRICT MAP, USGS MAPPING,  AND WAKE COUNTY SOILS
SURVEY. A FINAL JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION (JD) MAP WILL BE
PREPARED AND PROVIDED TO STAFF FOR APPROVAL CONCURRENCE.

30' ZONE 1 BUFFER

STREAM BUFFERS

50' TOA BUFFER

20' ZONE 2 BUFFER



As Noted

© 2019 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
f
a
x
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
6
4
1
1

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

Planned Unit
Development

NC License #P-0673

June 3, 2019

180901

K
IS

SE
N

A
 L

A
N

E
11

05
 T

IN
G

E
N

 R
O

A
D

B
U

C
K

H
O

R
N

A
PE

X
, N

O
R

T
H

 C
A

R
O

LI
N

A
 2

75
02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

FOR REVIEW

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JE

CONCEPTUAL
SITE PLAN

DW

C100

PRELIMINARY STREET
CONNECTIONS

PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE USE ONLY

PRELIMINARY
DEVELOPMENT AREA

ENVIRONMENTAL FEATURES NOTE:
STREAM BUFFERS WERE OBTAINED FROM APEX WATERSHED PROTECTION
OVERLAY DISTRICT MAP, USGS MAPPING AND WAKE COUNTY SOILS SURVEY. A
FINAL JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION (JD) MAP WILL BE PREPARED AND
PROVIDED TO STAFF FOR APPROVAL CONCURRENCE.

SCALE:

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN
 1"= 30'C100

1

0

SCALE: 1" =

15 30 60

30'

N

30' ZONE 1 BUFFER

STREAM BUFFERS

50' TOA BUFFER

20' ZONE 2 BUFFER

PRELIMINARY RESOURCE
CONSERVATION AREA

PROJECT'S PERIMETER BOUNDARY



As Noted

© 2019 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
f
a
x
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
6
4
1
1

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

Planned Unit
Development

NC License #P-0673

June 3, 2019

180901

K
IS

SE
N

A
 L

A
N

E
11

05
 T

IN
G

E
N

 R
O

A
D

B
U

C
K

H
O

R
N

A
PE

X
, N

O
R

T
H

 C
A

R
O

LI
N

A
 2

75
02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

FOR REVIEW

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JE

CONCEPTUAL
UTILITY PLAN

DW

C200

0

SCALE: 1" =

15 30 60

30'
N

SCALE:

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
 1"= 30'C200

1

PROJECT PERIMETER
BOUNDARY

PROPOSED WATER
CONNECTION

PROPOSED SEWER
CONNECTION

NOTES:
1. THE PROJECT IS REQUEST FULL TOWN OF APEX UTILITIES,

INCLUDING WATER, SEWER AND ELECTRICAL SERVICES. THE
FINAL LOCATION AND TIMING OF THE REFERENCED SERVICES
SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH TOWN STAFF.

2. THE PROJECT IS NOT PROPOSING PRIVATE SEWAGE
DISPOSAL.

3. THE LOCATION OF LOTS, STREETS, OPEN SPACE, RESOURCE
CONSERVATION AREAS, STORMWATER CONTROLS, AND
OTHER SITE IMPROVEMENTS ARE ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY AND
WILL BE COORDINATED WITH STAFF DURING THE MASTER
SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEW PROCESS.

4. THE PROJECT WILL COMPLY WITH TOWN OF APEX
STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS AS OUTLINED WITHIN THE
DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT MANUAL, THE REZONING PD
TEXT, AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO).

30' ZONE 1 BUFFER

ENVIRONMENTAL FEATURES NOTE:
STREAM BUFFERS WERE OBTAINED FROM APEX WATERSHED
PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT MAP, USGS MAPPING,  WAKE
COUNTY SOILS SURVEYA FINAL JURISDICTIONAL
DETERMINATION (JD) MAP WILL BE PREPARED AND PROVIDED
TO STAFF FOR APPROVAL CONCURRENCE.

STREAM BUFFERS

50' TOA BUFFER

20' ZONE 2 BUFFER



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 

Department(s): Planning Department 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case #19CZ20, Jones & 

Cnossen Engineering, PLLC., petitioners for the property located at 2708 Blazing Trail Drive.  

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case #19CZ20 was approved at the December 17, 2019 Town Council Meeting. 

 

Attachments 

 Statement of the Town Council 

 Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning District Map 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #19CZ20 

 
 
 Peter Cnossen, Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC./Otha Mckoy Heirs, owner/applicant (the 
“Applicant”), submitted a completed application for a conditional zoning on the 1st day of October 
2019 (the “Application”). The proposed conditional zoning is designated #19CZ20. 
 
 
 
 The Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given 
(by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #19CZ20 before the Planning Board held on the 9th  
day of December 2019. 
 
 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11(E) of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing 
on #19CZ20  before the Town Council on the 17th day of December 2019. 
 
 
 

   The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 9th day of December 2019, gathered 
facts, received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for 
conditional zoning #19CZ20.  A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend 
approval; the motion passed unanimously for the application for #19CZ20. 

 
 
 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 17th day of December 2019. Lauren 
Staudenmaier, Planner I, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing.   
 
 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #19CZ20 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 
 
 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #19CZ20 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 2708 Blazing Trail Drive from Rural Residential (RR) to Medium Density Residential-
Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ).   
 
 
 The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 
Land Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: the 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as 
Medium Density Residential. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning district 
Medium Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further 
considered that the proposed rezoning to Medium Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ) 
will maintain the character and appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to accommodate 
the growth in population, economy, and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 
2045 Land Use Map.  
 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL ZONING PETITION #19CZ20 
PAGE 2 

 
 
 

The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that the proposed rezoning will continue the single-family development pattern from the 
north and provide a public pedestrian connection to Blazing Trail Drive from the adjacent properties 
to the north. The rezoning will encourage compatible development of the property and increase the 
tax base.   
 
 

 
 

                         ______________________________________ 
                         Jacques Gilbert 
                         Mayor 

ATTEST: 
   
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Date 



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE TOWN OF APEX TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 2.00 ACRES LOCATED ON 2708 BLAZING TRAIL 
DRIVE FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL-CONDITIONAL 
ZONING (MD-CZ) 

#19CZ20 
 

  
WHEREAS, the application of Peter Cnossen, Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC./Otha Mckoy Heirs 
petitioner, for the rezoning of lands hereinafter described was duly filed with the office of the Planning 
Director and thereafter public hearings were held hereon on the 9th day of December 2019 before the 
Planning Board and the 17th day of December 2019, before the Town Council, respectively, pursuant to 
due notice mailed and published pursuant to G.S. § 160A-384. Thereafter, the Planning Board submitted 
its final report to the Town Council recommending approval of said application for the rezoning of the 
lands hereinafter described, all in accordance with the requirements of the Town of Apex Unified 
Development Ordinance and the provisions of Chapter 160A, Article 19, of the North Carolina General 
Statutes; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 
 
 
 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are 
hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 
 
 
 
            Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Rural Residential (RR) to Medium Density Residential–
Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ) District, subject to the conditions stated herein. 
 
 
 

Section 3:   The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed 
as part of this rezoning: 
 
Zoning Conditions: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted 
uses are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  

Permitted Uses and Limitations:  
1. Single-family 
2. Utility, minor 
3. Accessory apartment 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Conditions: 
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 
2. All single-family homes shall have a crawl space or have a raised foundation which at a minimum 

rises at least 20 inches from average grade across the front of the house to the finished floor level at 
the front door. 



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #19CZ20 
Page Two 
 
3. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them. 
4. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch. 
5. All roofs shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
6. The width of the garage doors shall be no more than 60% of the total width of the house and garage 

together. 
7. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
8. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 decorative 

elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements: 

 Windows  Decorative shake 

 Bay window  Decorative air vents on gable 

 Recessed window  Decorative gable 

 Decorative window  Decorative cornice 

 Trim around the windows  Column 

 Wrap around porch or side porch  Portico 

 Two or more building materials  Balcony 

 Decorative brick/stone  Dormer 

 Decorative trim  

 
9. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a minimum 

of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter and accent colors 
complementing the siding color. 

10. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 

11. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 

12. Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep. 
13. A minimum of one (1) residential dwelling in this development shall be constructed to include the 

installation of solar panels and a power system of at least 4 KW capacity.  The lots of which these 
homes are located shall be identified on the Master Subdivision Plat, which may be amended from 
time to time.  All other single-family detached homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar 
energy system. 

14. Home Owner Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of an accessory dwelling unit. 
15. All single-family homes shall be built to meet or exceed the minimum standards for Energy Star 

certification. 
  16. A pedestrian connection consisting of 5’ wide sidewalk within a 10’ wide public access easement on  
        Home Owners Association common area shall be provided from the stub of Lake Waccamaw Trail to  
         the existing sidewalk within the Townes at Bella Casa Association, Inc. to the south. If an easement is  
        not granted for this sidewalk connection by the Townes at Bella Casa Association, Inc., then the  
        pedestrian connection consisting of 5’ wide sidewalk within a 10’ wide public access easement on  
        Home Owners Association common area shall be provided from the stub of Lake Waccamaw Trail to  
        Blazing Trail Drive. 
 17.  The side yard setback for single-family lots shall be reduced from 6’ minimum with a 16’ aggregate  
         to a 5’ minimum with a 12’ aggregate to accommodate the pedestrian connection from Lake  
        Waccamaw Trail to Blazing Trail Drive.  
18.   Existing trees greater than 18” in diameter that are removed by site development shall be replaced  
        by planting a 1.5” caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual either  
        on-site or at an alternative location approved by Town Planning Staff.  
 



Page 3 of 3 

Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #19CZ20 
Page Three 
 

Section 4:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official 
Zoning District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect 
the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 
 
 

 
Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 

the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified 
Development Ordinance.  Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the 
Official Zoning District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified 
Development Ordinance. 

 
 
Section 6:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 
 
 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 
 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 
 
 This the _____ day of _________________ 2020. 
 
 

                                                                   TOWN OF APEX 
 
 

                                                                      ____________________________________ 
                                                                                                                           Mayor 
ATTEST:          
 
____________________________________ 
                       Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
                    Town Attorney                 

 





 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 

Department(s): Planning Department 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the January 21, 2020 Town Council Meeting regarding an amendment to the 

2045 Land Use Map and Rezoning Application #19CZ24 Upchurch-Williams House. The applicant, Cara 

Powell, seeks to amend the 2045 Land Use Map from Medium/High Density Residential to Office Employment 

and to rezone approximately 5.50 acres for the property located at 7213 Roberts Road, from Rural 

Residential (RR) to Office and Institutional-Conditional Zoning (O&I-CZ). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval.  

Item Details 

 

Attachments 

1. Vicinity Map  

2. Application 









































 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager  

Department(s): Administration  

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same for an Assumption of Agreement 

between the Town of Apex and North Carolina Department of Transportation.   

Approval Recommended 

Administration recommends approval  

 

Item Details 

This Assumption of Agreement with North Carolina Department of Transportation is for post construction 

maintenance and use of an 8-inch ductile iron pipe and 16-inch steel casing crossing the American 

Tobacco Trail for public sanitary sewer to serve the subdivision known as Point at Lake Castleberry.  On 

October 9, 2017, JS Development Company (developer) and North Carolina Department of 

Transportation entered into a License Agreement for Property Encroachment on the Rail Corridor right-of-

way known as the American Tobacco Trail for construction of the utilities.  Construction of the public 

sanitary sewer has been installed and approved by the town.  This agreement will allow the town to 

maintain the utilities within the NCDOT right of way. 

 

Attachments 

 Assumption of Agreement between North Carolina Department of Transportation and 

Town of Apex 

 Exhibit A – Executed copy of License Agreement for Property Encroachment between 

North Carolina Department of Transportation and JS Development Company 

 



 

 

         ASSUMPTION OF AGREEMENT     County of Wake        RR Milepost  DD.19.85 

 
 This Assumption of Agreement (“ Agreement”), made and entered into this   day of           
July      2018, by and between the North Carolina Department of Transportation, an agency of the 
State of North Carolina (“Licensor”) and Town of Apex, hereinafter referred to as Licensee, 
WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, by an original Encroachment Agreement dated October 9, 2017 between the 
Licensor and JS Development Company, the Licensor allowed for construction, maintenance and 
use of a 8-inch(8”) ductile iron pipe (DIP) carrier in 16 inch (16”) steel casing pipe and 
 
 WHEREAS, Licensee desires to assume the Encroachment Agreement from JS 
Development, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Licensee has requested and Licensor has granted approval to allow the 
Lessee to assume the aforementioned Encroachment Agreement, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Encroachment Agreement as herein set 
forth;  
 
 Now therefore, in consideration of the Licensor’s approval to allow Licensee to assume 
the Encroachment across Licensor’s property, it is mutually agreed that effective July ______, 
2018, The Town of Apex is the Licensee of record for said Agreement.  
 
 In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Assumption of Agreement in 
duplicate the day and year first above written. 
 
 
              Town of Apex 
 
Attest:     By: 
              
      
     TITLE _________________________________ 
             
 
 
      Department of Transportation 
 
     By:        
                       Julie White    
             Deputy Secretary of Multi Modal Transportation  
 
Attest 
        (SEAL) 
       
Processing Agent and 
Custodian of the Seal of the Department of 
Transportation  























 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: JANUARY 7, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Vance Holloman, Finance Officer and Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Department(s):   Legal and Finance 

  

Requested Motion  

Motion to approve Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9 which appropriates $80,000 in the Water and 

Sewer Fund to pay legal fees in connection with Rubin vs. Town of Apex.   

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The source of funds will be a transfer from the Water Sewer Capital Reserve Fund. 

 

Attachments 

 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9 



 

Town of Apex  
FY 2018-2019 BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NUMBER 9 

 
 

 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Ordinance be adopted: 

 

WATER SEWER FUND  

 

Section 1. Revenues  

  

Transfer from Water Sewer Reserve Fund  $80,000 

 Total $80,000 

  

Section 2. Expenditures  

   

          Professional Services-Legal   $80,000 

Total $80,000 

 

WATER SEWER RESERVE FUND  

 

Section 3. Revenues  

  

Appropriated Fund Balance  $80,000 

 Total $80,000 

  

Section 4. Expenditures  

   

   

          Transfer to Water Sewer Fund   $80,000 

Total $80,000 

 

Adopted this the 7th day of January, 2020.   

 
 

 

 

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor 

 

Attest: 
 

 

 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 



 

 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager  

Department(s): Administration  

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same for an Encroachment Agreement 

between the Town and property owner, Matthew Glen Pittman, regarding Wake County, NC, PIN#0723-15-

1627 , Lot 125, Lake Castleberry Phase 3, Book of Maps 2018, Page 02346, 205 Glenvale Street, Apex, NC, 27523.         

Approval Recommended 

Administration recommends approval  

 

Approve Encroachment Agreement between the Town and Matthew Glen Pittman, (Grantee) for 

property described as a residential lot known as Wake County, NC, PIN#0723-15-1627 , Lot 125, Lake 

Castleberry Phase 3, Book of Maps 2018, Page 02346, 205 Glenvale Street, Apex, NC, 27523.  Grantee 

wishes to install a concrete driveway which will serve the residential lot of which 63 square feet will 

encroach upon a portion of the Public Utility Easement. 

      

Attachments 

 Encroachment Agreement 

 Exhibit A 

















` 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager  

Department(s): Administration  

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same for an Encroachment Agreement 

between the Town and property owner, MREC DT Beaver Creek, LLC, regarding Wake County, NC, 

PIN#0732-45-3603, Lot 6 Hempstead at Beaver Creek Phase 3 as shown and recorded in Book of Maps 2018, 

Page 00539, 1900 Creekside Landing Drive, Apex, NC 27502.    

Approval Recommended 

Administration recommends approval 

 

Item Details 

Approve Encroachment Agreement between the Town and MREC DT Beaver Creek, LLC, (Grantee) for 

property described as a residential lot known as Wake County, NC PIN#0732-45-3603, Lot 6, Hempstead 

at Beaver Creek Phase 3, Book of Maps 2018, Page 00539, 1900 Creekside Landing Drive, Apex, NC 

27502.  Grantee wishes to install a private retaining wall access and maintenance easement of which 

164.3 square feet will encroach upon a portion of the Public Drainage Easement.   

 

Attachments 

 Encroachment Agreement 

 Exhibit A 















1730 Varsity Drive, Suite 500

Raleigh, North Carolina 27606

O: 919.233.8091  F: 919.233.8031

HEMPSTEAD AT BEAVER CREEK

Date:

March 26, 2019

Scale: 1"=20'

EXHIBIT A

WHITESMITH DRIVE

C
R

E
E

K
S

I
D

E
 
L

A
N

D
I
N

G
 
D

R
I
V

E



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Russell H. Dalton, PE , Senior Transportation Engineer 

Department(s):   Public Works & Transportation 

  

Requested Motion  

Motion to approve Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 

9 appropriating $144,950 in the Street Improvements Fund for traffic signals at  South Salem Street at Tingen 

Road/Lynch Street and  Old US 1 at New Hill Olive Chapel Road/New Hill Holleman Road 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The source of funds include a transfer of $134,950 currently held in the Transportation Capital Reserve 

Fund. These funds are payments in lieu from Jordan Pointe for this purpose. The additional $10,000 is 

appropriated interest earning already in the Street Improvements Project Fund. Below are brief 

descriptions of each project.  

 

South Salem Street at Tingen Road/Lynch Street traffic signal:  This location has experienced growing 

traffic congestion and long delays on Tingen Road, creating a source of complaints and concerns about 

safety.  A traffic signal warrant study was conducted and provided to NCDOT.  NCDOT has agreed to 

permit a temporary traffic signal, to be removed when Tingen Road is eventually closed at the railroad 

tracks following completion of the Apex Peakway bridge over South Salem Street.  It is anticipated that 

the signal will include both the Tingen Road and Lynch Street approaches without realignment and 

installed within existing right-of-way.  Design will be performed by an engineering consultant. 

 

Old US 1 at New Hill Olive Chapel Road/New Hill Holleman Road traffic signal:  This location has 

experienced growing traffic congestion and long delays that led NCDOT to install all-way stop 



 

control.  However, traffic congestion is continuing to increase.  A traffic signal warrant study was 

conducted and provided to NCDOT.  NCDOT has agreed to permit a traffic signal.  A fee in lieu for 

installation of the traffic signal was previously collected from the developers of Jordan Pointe in 

accordance with a zoning condition of approval to be used toward this project.  It is anticipated that 

the signal will require additional right-of-way from all four corners, with the signal equipment being offset 

to allow for future anticipated left turn lanes.  Survey and design will be performed by an engineering 

consultant. 

 

Attachments 

 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 

 Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 9 

 



 

Town of Apex  
FY 2019-2020 BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NUMBER 10 

 
 

 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Ordinance be adopted: 

 

 

TRANSPORATION RESERVE FUND  

 

Section 1. Revenues  

  

Fund Balance (Payments in Lieu of Streets)  $134,950 

 Total $134,950 

  

Section 2. Expenditures  

   

   

          Transfer to Street Improvements Fund  $134,950 

Total $134,950 

 

Adopted this the 7th day of January, 2020.   

 
 

 

 

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor 

 

Attest: 
 

 

 

Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk 

 



Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:

Interest Earnings $10,000

$134,950

$144,950

Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:

$10,000

$134,950

$144,950

Attest:

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk

Town of Apex 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2020-09

63 - Street Improvements Capital Project Fund

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the Capital Project Ordinance
previously entitled "Street Improvements Capital Project Fund" be amended as follows:

Total Expenditures

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the

Finance Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 7th day of January, 2020.

Transfer from Transportation Reserve Fund

Total Revenues

Salem Street & Tingen/Lynch Street Intersection Improvements

Old US 1 & New Hill Road Intersection Improvements



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

             Item Details          

 

Presenter(s): Michael Deaton, Water Resources Director 

Department(s): Water Resources 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to award a water main construction contract to North State Water and Sewer, Inc and to authorize 

the Town Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the Town.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The town received seven bids for the Irongate Subdivision Waterline Extension Project on December 17, 

2019.  North State Water and Sewer, Inc. of Winston Salem, North Carolina, was the low bidder with a 

total bid price of $323,530.00.  This project is funded by a Community Development Block Grant in 

conjunction with Wake County.  The budgeted amount for the project was $350,000.00.  

 

The Town’s Water Resources Department recommends awarding the contract to North State Water and 

Sewer, Inc. 

 

Attachments 

 Recommendation of Award 

 Certified Bid Tab 

 Notice of Award 

 Bid Package 

 Agreement 







 

EJCDC® C-510, Notice of Award. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 1 of 2 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 

Date of Issuance:    

Owner: Town of Apex  Owner's Contract No.:  

Engineer: Town of Apex  Engineer's Project No.:  

Project: Irongate Subdivision Waterline Extension  Contract Name:  

Bidder: North State Water and Sewer, Inc.  

Bidder’s Address: 3195 Maplewood Avenue, Winston Salem, NC 27103  

TO BIDDER: 

 You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated December 17, 2019 for the above Contract, and that 
you are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for: 

Irongate Subdivision Waterline Extension Project ______________________________________________ . 
The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is:  $323,530.00. 

        [4] unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the 
Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award, or has been transmitted or made available to 
Bidder electronically. [revise if multiple copies accompany the Notice of Award] 

           a set of the Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents.  

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice 
of Award: 
 

1. Deliver to Owner [4] counterparts of the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder. 

2. Deliver with the executed Agreement(s) the Contract security [e.g., performance and payment bonds] 
and insurance documentation as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions, 
Articles 2 and 6. 

3. Other conditions precedent (if any): None 
 

 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, 
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in 
Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions. 

Owner: Town of Apex 

                         Authorized Signature 

By: Drew Havens 

Title: Town Manager 

 
Copy: Engineer 

Acceptance of Notice 

Receipt of the above Notice of Award is hereby acknowledged by   

this the    day of   , 20     . 



 

EJCDC® C-510, Notice of Award. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 2 of 2 
 

By:      Title:   

 

































BID SUMMARY 

IRONGATE SUBDIVISION WATERLINE EXTENSION

FOR TOWN OF APEX

APEX, NC 

THE WOOTEN COMPANY LOW BIDDER

Bid Date - June 21, 2016, 2pm          

TOTAL UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

DESCRIPTION UNITS QUAN. COST COST COST COST COST COST COST COST COST COST

BASE BID

1 12" RJDIP Waterline LF 50 $82.00 $4,100.00 $110.00 $5,500.00 $155.00 $7,750.00 $214.00 $10,700.00 $216.00 $10,800.00

2 8" RJDIP Waterline LF 1005 $74.00 $74,370.00 $70.00 $70,350.00 $75.00 $75,375.00 $110.00 $110,550.00 $100.00 $100,500.00

3 8" DIP Waterline EA 2370 $61.00 $144,570.00 $68.00 $161,160.00 $58.00 $137,460.00 $86.00 $203,820.00 $82.00 $194,340.00

4 8" Gate Valve EA 3 $2,400.00 $7,200.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,500.00 $13,500.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $2,300.00 $6,900.00

5 Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 6 $5,500.00 $33,000.00 $7,000.00 $42,000.00 $7,500.00 $45,000.00 $5,400.00 $32,400.00 $6,000.00 $36,000.00

6 12" Blowoff Assembly EA 1 $6,200.00 $6,200.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00

7 Connect to Existing Water Main EA 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,100.00 $6,100.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00

8

Bore and Jack 16" Steel Encasement with  8" Carrier 

Pipe
LF 25

$300.00 $7,500.00 $475.00 $11,875.00 $625.00 $15,625.00 $900.00 $22,500.00 $464.00 $11,600.00

9 3/4" Water Service (Same Side) EA 10 $1,400.00 $14,000.00 $2,000.00 $20,000.00 $2,700.00 $27,000.00 $1,400.00 $14,000.00 $1,300.00 $13,000.00

10 3/4" Water Service (Opposite Side) EA 8 $1,800.00 $14,400.00 $2,800.00 $22,400.00 $3,200.00 $25,600.00 $2,300.00 $18,400.00 $2,100.00 $16,800.00

11 Concrete Driveway Repair SY 6 $90.00 $540.00 $300.00 $1,800.00 $250.00 $1,500.00 $123.00 $738.00 $120.00 $720.00

12 Gravel Driveway Repair SY 40 $25.00 $1,000.00 $45.00 $1,800.00 $70.00 $2,800.00 $33.00 $1,320.00 $50.00 $2,000.00

13 Asphalt Pavement Repair SY 45 $70.00 $3,150.00 $145.00 $6,525.00 $200.00 $9,000.00 $184.00 $8,280.00 $120.00 $5,400.00

14 Undercut Unstable Soils CY 50 $20.00 $1,000.00 $40.00 $2,000.00 $50.00 $2,500.00 $93.00 $4,650.00 $90.00 $4,500.00

15 Rock Removal CY 10 $100.00 $1,000.00 $75.00 $750.00 $400.00 $4,000.00 $163.00 $1,630.00 $400.00 $4,000.00

16 Clearing and Grubbing AC 0.25 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $4,800.00 $1,200.00 $110,000.00 $27,500.00 $21,000.00 $5,250.00 $15,000.00 $3,750.00

17 Erosion Control, Seeding, Cleanup LS 1 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $36,795.00 $36,795.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

TOTAL BASE BID $323,530.00 $401,155.00 $448,610.00 $456,938.00 $479,310.00

5. BridgePoint Civil, LLC1. North State Water and Sewer  2. BCY Development, Inc. 3. Moffat Pipe, Inc. 4. North American Pipeline Mgmt

Page 1 of 2 Prepared By: JG



BID SUMMARY 

IRONGATE SUBDIVISION WATERLINE EXTENSION

FOR TOWN OF APEX

APEX, NC 

THE WOOTEN COMPANY

Bid Date - June 21, 2016, 2pm          

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION UNITS QUAN.

BASE BID

1 12" RJDIP Waterline LF 50

2 8" RJDIP Waterline LF 1005

3 8" DIP Waterline EA 2370

4 8" Gate Valve EA 3

5 Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 6

6 12" Blowoff Assembly EA 1

7 Connect to Existing Water Main EA 1

8

Bore and Jack 16" Steel Encasement with  8" Carrier 

Pipe
LF 25

9 3/4" Water Service (Same Side) EA 10

10 3/4" Water Service (Opposite Side) EA 8

11 Concrete Driveway Repair SY 6

12 Gravel Driveway Repair SY 40

13 Asphalt Pavement Repair SY 45

14 Undercut Unstable Soils CY 50

15 Rock Removal CY 10

16 Clearing and Grubbing AC 0.25

17 Erosion Control, Seeding, Cleanup LS 1

TOTAL BASE BID

Average of 3 Low Bidders Average of All Bids

UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

COST COST COST COST COST COST COST COST

$185.00 $9,250.00 $344.00 $17,200.00 $115.67 $5,783.33 $186.57 $9,328.57

$80.00 $80,400.00 $76.00 $76,380.00 $73.00 $73,365.00 $83.57 $83,989.29

$70.00 $165,900.00 $68.00 $161,160.00 $62.33 $147,730.00 $70.43 $166,915.71

$3,200.00 $9,600.00 $3,800.00 $11,400.00 $2,966.67 $8,900.00 $2,885.71 $8,657.14

$8,336.24 $50,017.41 $7,000.00 $42,000.00 $6,666.67 $40,000.00 $6,676.61 $40,059.63

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $7,233.33 $7,233.33 $9,828.57 $9,828.57

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $4,166.67 $4,166.67 $6,371.43 $6,371.43

$1,600.00 $40,000.00 $1,300.00 $32,500.00 $466.67 $11,666.67 $809.14 $20,228.57

$2,200.00 $22,000.00 $2,700.00 $27,000.00 $2,033.33 $20,333.33 $1,957.14 $19,571.43

$4,000.00 $32,000.00 $4,300.00 $34,400.00 $2,600.00 $20,800.00

$420.00 $2,520.00 $700.00 $4,200.00 $213.33 $1,280.00 $286.14 $1,716.86

$90.00 $3,600.00 $66.00 $2,640.00 $46.67 $1,866.67 $54.14 $2,165.71

$250.00 $11,250.00 $270.00 $12,150.00 $138.33 $6,225.00 $177.00 $7,965.00

$40.00 $2,000.00 $150.00 $7,500.00 $36.67 $1,833.33 $69.00 $3,450.00

$75.00 $750.00 $1,100.00 $11,000.00 $191.67 $1,916.67 $330.43 $3,304.29

$1,000.00 $250.00 $16,000.00 $4,000.00 $41,600.00 $10,400.00 $25,400.00 $6,350.00

$46,250.00 $46,250.00 $84,000.00 $84,000.00 $27,598.33 $27,598.33 $38,792.14 $38,792.14

$495,787.41 $559,530.00 $391,098.33 $428,694.34

7. Garney Companies, Inc.6. Hunter Contracting

Page 2 of 2 Prepared By: JG



12/17/2019

1/1

NORTH CAROLINA LICENSING BOARD FOR
GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Name: North State Water and Sewer Inc.
Number: 76022
Status: Valid
Last Renewal Date: 2019-01-01
Address: 3195 Maplewood Ave
City: Winston Salem
State: NC
Zip: 27103-3903
County: FORSYTH
Telephone: (336) 575-3052
limitation: Unlimited

Classifications : PU(Water Lines & Sewer Lines)
S (Boring & Tunneling)

Qualifiers : Rodney Andrew Latham



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 1 of 7 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between Town of Apex (“Owner”) and 

 (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 
Work is generally described as follows: 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as 
follows: 3,500 linear feet of 12-inch, 8-inch, and 6-inch waterline, including fire hydrants and 
new service connections. 

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The part of the Project that pertains to the Work has been designed by the Town of Apex Water 
Resources Department.  All notices required in accordance with this Agreement shall be 
provided to Jamie Gregg (james.gregg@apexnc.org) and Mike Deaton 
(Michael.deaton@apexnc.org) with the Town of Apex Water Resources Department. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

4.02 Contract Times: Days 

A. The Work will be substantially completed within 60 days after the date when the Contract 
Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, and 
completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General 
Conditions within 90 days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run. 

4.03 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 
above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed 
and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any 
extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the 
delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the 
actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty): 



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 2 of 7 

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $750 for each day that expires 
after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 
4.02.A above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. 

2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall 
neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times (as 
duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final 
payment, Contractor shall pay Owner $750 for each day that expires after such time 
until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final 
completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently. 

4. Milestones: Contractor shall pay Owner $750 for each day that expires after the time 
(as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified above for achievement of 
Milestone 1, until Milestone 1 is achieved. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 

A. All specific cash allowances are included in the above price in accordance with Paragraph 
13.02 of the General Conditions. 

B. Total of Unit Price Work  $_____                                                                                              _____. 

C. All Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s Bid, is attached hereto as an exhibit. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the 
General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 25th day of each month during 
performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such 
Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the 
requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of 
Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price 
Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of 
Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal 
to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not 
limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract 

a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has 
been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and 
progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long 



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 3 of 7 

as the character and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and 
Engineer, there will be no additional retainage; and 

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with 
the balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to Contractor to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off 
by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less 200 percent of 
Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the 
punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. 

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 Interest on final payments due to prime contracts shall accrue in accordance with North Carolina 
General Statute 143-134.1. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site 
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and 
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect 
cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and 
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if 
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, 
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings. 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related 
reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of 
such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance 
of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and 
programs. 



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 4 of 7 

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, 
or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 
Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of 
all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement (pages 1 to 7, inclusive). 

2. Performance bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

3. Payment bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

4. Power of Attorney (pages 1 to 1, inclusive). 

5. Certificate of Insurance (pages 1 to 1, inclusive). 

6. General Conditions (pages 1 to 65, inclusive). 

7. Supplementary Conditions (pages 1 to 19, inclusive). 

8. Supplementary General Conditions – CDBG Compliance Requirements (Pages 1 to 33, 
inclusive). 

9. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

10. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of 8 sheets with 
each sheet bearing the following general title: Irongate Subdivision Waterline 
Extension Project. 

11. Addenda (numbers ___ to ___, inclusive). 

12. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages 1 to 7, inclusive). 

b. Notice of Award (pages 1 to 1, inclusive). 

c. Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award. 

d. Affidavits. 

13. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Contract and are not attached hereto: 



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 5 of 7 

a. Notice to Proceed. 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and 
the Supplementary Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of 
any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto 
without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without 
limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited 
by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under 
any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue 
to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract 
Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid 
and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision. 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 
10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the 
Contract execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of 



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 6 of 7 

Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 
to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or 
affect the execution of the Contract. 

10.06 E-Verify 

A. Contractor hereby acknowledges that “E-Verify” is the federal E-Verify program 
operated by the US Department of Homeland Security and other federal agencies 
which is used to verify the work authorization of newly hired employees pursuant to 
federal law and in accordance with Article 2, Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General 
Statutes.  Contractor further acknowledges that all employers, as defined by Article 2, 
Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes, must use E-Verify and after hiring 
an employee to work in the United States, shall verify the work authorization of the 
employee through E-Verify in accordance with NCGS §64-26(a).  Contractor hereby 
pledges, attests and warrants through execution of this Agreement that Contractor 
complies with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes and further pledges, attests and warrants that any subcontractors 
currently employed by or subsequently hired by Contractor shall comply with any and 
all E-Verify requirements.  Failure to comply with the above requirements shall be 
considered a breach of this Agreement. 

10.07 Iran Divestment Act Certification 

A.   N.C.G.S. 147-86.60 prohibits the State of North Carolina, a North Carolina local 
government, or any other political subdivision of the State of North Carolina from 
contracting with any entity that is listed on the Final Divestment List created by the 
North Carolina State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. 147-86.58.  N.C.G.S. 147-86.59 
further requires that contractors with the State, a North Carolina local government, 
or any other political subdivision of the State of North Carolina must not utilize any 
subcontractor found on the State Treasurer’s Final Divestment List.  As of the date of 
execution of this Agreement Contractor hereby certifies that it is not listed on the 
Final Divestment List created by the North Carolina State Treasurer and that 
Contractor will not utilize any subcontractors found on the Final Divestment List. 

10.08 Anti-Human Trafficking 

                      A. The Contractor warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by the Contractor or the 
Contractor’s subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by 
means of deception, coercion, intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North 
Carolina law, specifically Article 10A, Subchapter 3 of Chapter 14 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes, Human Trafficking. 

 

 



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  

This Agreement will be effective on __________ (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). 

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 

Town of Apex   

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

  
(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint 
venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)   

Attest:   Attest:  

Title:   Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

P.O. Box 250    

Apex, NC 27502-0250   

   

  License No.:  

 
  

(where applicable) 

If Contractor is a corporation, partnership, or joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign. 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

 

__________________________________ 
 Vance Holloman, Finance Director 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Department(s): Planning Department 

  

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town 

Council’s intent to annex Crescent Apex, LLC (Linden Subdivision) property containing 4.513 acres located 

at Linden Grove Drive & Olive Chapel Road, Annexation #679 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Ordinance 

 Annexation Petition 

 Legal Description 

 Preliminary Plat 







0 LINDEN GROVE LANE ANNEXATION 
 
BEGINNING AT AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE BEING THE NORTH EASTERN 
MOST CORNER OF 0 LINDEN GROVE LANE; THENCE SOUTH 00°14'03" WEST, 761.18 FEET 
TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE SOUTH 79°17'16" WEST, 115.98 FEET TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE SOUTH 70°49'15" WEST, 34.84 FEET TO AN EXISTING 
IRON PIPE; THENCE WITH A CURVE TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 37.09 FEET, 
WITH A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 66°40'45" WEST, 
WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 33.78 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE NORTH 
24°10'45" WEST, 100.75 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE WITH A CURVE TO 
THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 142.05 FEET, WITH A RADIUS OF 370.00 FEET, 
WITH A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 13°10'50" WEST, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 141.18 
FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE NORTH 02°10'55" WEST, 553.08 FEET TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE SOUTH 89°44'26" EAST, 275.51 FEET TO THE POINT AND 
PLACE OF BEGINNING CONTAINING 4.513 ACRES, 196573 SQUARE FEET. 
 
 
 





OLIVE CHAPEL RD

ALICE CT

ATKINSON CT

TAMORA CT

SIMCA CT

PINEY WOODS LN

W
IN

EC
OT

T D
R

JEHON CT

GRASSY POINT RD

BERGEN AVE

PRICEWOOD LN STARITA CT

Hollands
Crossing

Woodridge

Holland Cove

Linden

Lucas
Farms

0 250 500

Feet
December, 2019 
November 2019 Aerial Photography
Prepared by: Town of Apex Planning Department

Annexation #679



Olive Chapel Rd

Ky
thi

ra
Dr

Farmhouse Dr

Barn Door Dr

Cornfield Aly

Ne
w

Tim
berPath

Everbloom Aly

Apex Ba rbecue Rd

Hay ride Aly

Baxter Ridge Ct

Snowdrop Ct

Rile ys Pond Dr

Winecott Dr

Vil
lag

ioDr

Tin
os

Overlook Way

Cregler Dr

Piney Woods Ln

Lemnos Dr

Averroe Dr

Heathcote Ln

Great L awn Rd

Ro
wb

oa
t R

d
Angelica Rose Wa y Brickstone Dr

Chapel Oak Dr

Homestead Park Dr

MoretzCt

Grindall A ly

Jehon Ct

Quisisana Rd

Commodore Dr
Brierridge Dr

Ho
me

son
g Way

Bergen Ave

Sunflo wer Rd

Shopton Dr

Livestock A ly

Pe

can Ridge Way

Starita Ct

Kelly West Dr

Th
as

so
sD

r

Grassy Point Rd

Linde nGrove Ln

Chapel Valley Ln

0 500 1,000

Feet

A p exA p ex
E T JE T J

A p exA p ex
C o r p o rateC o r p o rate

L i m itsL i m its

December, 2019 
Prepared by: Town of Apex Planning Department

Annexation #679



RA

HD MF-CU

MD

CB-CU

RR

MD-CZ

PUD-CZ

WC: R-80W

Olive Chapel Rd

Farmhouse Dr

Barn Door Dr

Cornfield Aly

Everbloom Aly

Hayride Aly

Ky
thi

ra
Dr

Baxter Ridge Ct

Snowdrop Ct

Rile ys Pond Dr

Winecott Dr

Vil
lag

ioDr

Apex Barbecue Rd

Tin
os

Overlook Way

Br
ick

sto
ne

Dr

Cregler Dr

Piney Woods Ln

Lemnos Dr

Averroe Dr

Heathcote Ln

Ne
w

Tim
ber

Path

Grea t Lawn Rd

Ro
wb

oa
t R

d
Angelica Rose Wa y

Br
ick

sto
ne

 D
r

Chapel Oak Dr

Kinship Ln

Homestead Park Dr

MoretzCt

J ehon Ct

Quisisana Rd

Commodore Dr
Brierridge Dr

Sunflo wer Rd

Sh
op

ton
Dr

Bergen Ave

Livestock A ly

Pe

can Ridge Way

Starita Ct

Kelly West Dr

Th
as

so
sD

r

GrassyPoint Rd

Linden Grove Ln

Chapel Valley Ln

0 500 1,000

Feet

Z o n i n g  D i strictsZ o n i n g  D i stricts

December, 2019 
Prepared by: Town of Apex Planning Department

Annexation #679



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
   

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
Municipality No. 333 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-0107-01 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. #679 

Linden MSP 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA  

P.O. Box 250, Apex, North Carolina  27502 
 

       WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has been petitioned under G.S.§160A-31, as 
amended, to annex the area described herein; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has by Resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of said petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a 
public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Apex Town Hall at 
6:00 p.m. on January 7, 2020, after due notice by posting to the Town of Apex 
website, http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads; and  
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council does hereby find as a fact that said petition 
meets the requirements of G.S.§160A-31, as amended. 
 

After recording, please return to: 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Town of Apex 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 



Page 2 
      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina: 
 
    Section 1.   By virtue of the authority granted by G.S.§160A-31, as amended, the 
territory described in the attached property description and also shown as 
“Annexation Area” on the below identified survey plat is hereby annexed and 
made part of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of the date of adoption of this 
Ordinance on August 15, 2017.  The survey plat that describes the annexed territory 
is that certain survey plat entitled “Contiguous Annexation 0 Linden Grove Lane, 
McAdams Company, dated 10.16.2019” and recorded in Book of Maps book 
number  2020  and page number                              , Wake County Registry.   

    Section 2.   Upon and after the adoption of this ordinance, the territory described 
herein and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances 
and regulations in force in the Town of Apex, North Carolina, and shall be entitled 
to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Apex.  Said territory 
shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.§160A-58.10, as amended. 
 
    Section 3.   The Clerk of the Town of Apex, North Carolina shall cause to be 
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County and in the Office 
of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina and in the Office of the Wake 
County Board of Elections an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in 
Section 1 hereof, together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance. 
 
    Adopted this the 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Jacques K. Gilbert 
      Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 
 
 
 



Page 3 
 
 
Legal Description 
 
BEGINNING AT AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE BEING THE NORTH EASTERN 
MOST CORNER OF 0 LINDEN GROVE LANE; THENCE SOUTH 00°14'03" WEST, 761.18 
FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE SOUTH 79°17'16" WEST, 115.98 FEET TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE SOUTH 70°49'15" WEST, 34.84 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON 
PIPE; THENCE WITH A CURVE TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 37.09 FEET, WITH 
A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 66°40'45" WEST, WITH A 
CHORD LENGTH OF 33.78 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE NORTH 24°10'45" 
WEST, 100.75 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE WITH A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 
WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 142.05 FEET, WITH A RADIUS OF 370.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD 
BEARING OF NORTH 13°10'50" WEST, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 141.18 FEET TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE NORTH 02°10'55" WEST, 553.08 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON 
PIPE; THENCE SOUTH 89°44'26" EAST, 275.51 FEET TO THE POINT AND PLACE OF 
BEGINNING CONTAINING 4.513 ACRES, 196573 SQUARE FEET.  

  

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk, Town of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Annexation Ordinance 
No. 2020-0107-01, adopted at a meeting of the Town Council, on the 7th day of 
January 2020, the original of which will be on file in the Office of the Town Clerk of 
Apex, North Carolina. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of 
the Town of Apex, North Carolina, this the 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 
  

_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

                      (SEAL) 
 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date: 1/7/2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Department(s): Planning Department 

  

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town 

Council’s intent to annex James and Jennifer Davis, Charles Catlette Jr., Martha B. Catlette Revocable Trust 

and Jennifer Davis (Courtyards on Holt) property containing 26.897 acres located at 0, 1337 and 1345 Holt 

Road, 305 and 313 Catlette Street, Annexation #680 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes, by the Planning Department. 

 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Ordinance 

 Annexation Petition 

 Legal Description 

 Preliminary Plat 

























LOCATION MAP

SITE

H
O

LT
 R

D

HOLT RD

TW
IN

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

Scale:

Sheet Number:

Project Number:

Date:

Drawn By:

51
 K

ilm
ay

ne
 D

ri
ve

S
ui

te
 1

05

C
ar

y,
 N

or
th

 C
ar

ol
in

a 
27

51
1

fa
x 

91
9.

33
6.

51
27

E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R

S
S

U
R

V
Y

E
O

R
S

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P
FO

R

TO
W

N
 O

F 
A

PE
X

H
O

LT
 R

O
A

D
, A

PE
X,

 N
C

 2
75

23

GRAPHIC SCALE
0

1 inch = 100 feet

20050 100

SEAL
L - 5273









 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
   

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
Municipality No. 333 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-0107-02 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. #680 

The Courtyards on Holt 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA  

P.O. Box 250, Apex, North Carolina  27502 
 

       WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has been petitioned under G.S.§160A-31, as 
amended, to annex the area described herein; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has by Resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of said petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a 
public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Apex Town Hall at 
6:00 p.m. on January 7, 2020, after due notice by posting to the Town of Apex 
website, http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads; and  
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council does hereby find as a fact that said petition 
meets the requirements of G.S.§160A-31, as amended. 
 

After recording, please return to: 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Town of Apex 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 



Page 2 
      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina: 
 
    Section 1.   By virtue of the authority granted by G.S.§160A-31, as amended, the 
territory described in the attached property description and also shown as 
“Annexation Area” on the below identified survey plat is hereby annexed and 
made part of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of the date of adoption of this 
Ordinance on January 7, 2020.  The survey plat that describes the annexed territory 
is that certain survey plat entitled “Annexation Map for the Town of Apex, Holt 
Road, Advanced Civil Design, dated 11/26/2019” and recorded in Book of Maps 
book number  2020  and page number                              , Wake County Registry.   

    Section 2.   Upon and after the adoption of this ordinance, the territory described 
herein and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances 
and regulations in force in the Town of Apex, North Carolina, and shall be entitled 
to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Apex.  Said territory 
shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.§160A-58.10, as amended. 
 
    Section 3.   The Clerk of the Town of Apex, North Carolina shall cause to be 
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County and in the Office 
of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina and in the Office of the Wake 
County Board of Elections an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in 
Section 1 hereof, together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance. 
 
    Adopted this the 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Jacques K. Gilbert 
      Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 
 
 
 



Page 3 
 
 
Legal Description 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 4 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk, Town of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Annexation Ordinance 
No. 2020-0107-02, adopted at a meeting of the Town Council, on the 7th day of 
January 2020, the original of which will be on file in the Office of the Town Clerk of 
Apex, North Carolina. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of 
the Town of Apex, North Carolina, this the 7th day of January 2020. 
 
 
  

_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

                      (SEAL) 
 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Nicole Dozier, Mayor Pro Tem 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to amend the 2020 Calendar of Town Council meetings. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

At their Organizational Meeting on December 3, 2019, the Town Council adopted a calendar of 

meetings for 2020 and 2021. During the conversation regarding the meeting schedule, there was interest 

expressed in removing a few dates from the calendar in order to provide a longer break between 

meetings in certain times of the year. There was also a desire expressed to consider moving the meeting 

set for November 3, 2020 because this falls on the day of County, State, and National elections.  

 

Attachments 

 Modified meeting calendar 



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
31 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

Holiday
Council 1st and 3rd Tuesday
Planning Board 2nd Monday
Parks and Recreation Board Last Wednesday
Board of Adjustment  2nd Tuesday

January February March April
2020 Meeting Calendar 

September October November December

May June July August Move to Wed. 11/4 to avoid 
meeting on Federal, State, 
and County election day

Cancel to provide longer pre‐
holiday break2

Cancel to provide longer 
summer break1

Cancel to provide longer 
summer break1,2

1. some concern expressed 
regarding cancelling back‐to‐
back meetings due to the 
impact that may have on the 
lenght of the meetings 
before/after the ones 
cancelled. 

2. some concern expressed 
about canceling the 2nd 
meeting of the month due to 
timing of Planning Related 
agenda items. 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: NEW BUSINESS 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Tom Colwell, Chairman, Public Art Committee 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 

  

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to support and approve 3 Public Art projects 

Approval Recommended? 

 

 

Item Details 

The Public Art Committee is requesting permission to undertake 3 public art projects.  

 1) Apex Public Art Walk / Sculpture Show – (Estimated cost $30,000 distributed across two fiscal years 

 from General Fund) 

 2) Building Mural – (Estimated cost $15,000 maximum). The Public Art Committee has a commitment 

 from the United Arts Council to partner and provide up to $5,000 for the project. Currently the Halle 

 Cultural Arts Center has funds in its Special Projects Account specifically designated for Public Art 

 related projects.   

 3) Manhole Painting Pilot Project- (Estimated cost $500-$1,000) Paint manhole on Beaver Creek 

 Greenway between Jaycee Park and Kelly Road Park. Funding for this project would come from the 

 Halle’s Special Projects Account specifically designated for Public Art projects. 

Both projects were reviewed by the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission (the 

Public Art Committee is a sub-committee of the PRCR Advisory Commission) and received unanimous 

support. Mr. Colwell will be present to present these projects to the Council for approval. 

 

Attachments 

 Projects Information (Public Art Walk, Mural, Manhole Painting) 



Apex Public Art



Apex Public Art annual holiday window painting 
with area high schools



Public Art is Integrated with Town Planning



Area businesses, 
schools and the 
community 
getting involved



View driving north on Rt 55

Proposed 
Mural 
Location

View driving south on Rt 55

Apex Public Art partnership with the United Arts Council
Apex Public Works Building – Route 55



Apex Public Art
Sculpture Show and Art Walk

• 6-8 locations for outdoor 
sculptures connecting Apex Town 
Campus, Hunter Street Park and 
Downtown Apex

• Sculptures on loan from regional 
artists for a period of 6 to 12 
months.

• Awards given to Best in Show and 
People’s Choice at a public event 
celebrating the artwork & the 
artists while expressing gratitude 
for the sponsors.

• Placards, Art Walk map and digital 
content describing the artwork, 
identifying the artists and 
acknowledging the sponsors.



Artwork along Beaver Creek Greenway



Thank You



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: WORK SESSION 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager and Russell Dalton, Senior 

Transportation Engineer 

Department(s): Planning and Public Works and Transportation 

  

Requested Motion 

Work Session to discuss the future of Richardson Road given the conservation easement along the planned 

road alignment of this critical roadway in the Town’s Transportation Plan.  

Approval Recommended? 

Not applicable 

 

Item Details 

Work Session to discuss the future of Richardson Road. There is a conservation easement along the 

planned alignment of this critical roadway in the Town’s transportation plan. Staff will explain what has 

already been done to address this issue, present possible options, and request Town Council guidance 

regarding next steps. 

 

Attachments 

 None 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: WORK SESSION 

Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Discussion of possible mitigation measures to address concerns shared by residents who live near the site of 

the new Electric Operation Center in order to provide direction to staff on how to proceed with construction. 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

 

Item Details 

Under Old Business at the November 6th meeting, Council discussed concerns of residents who live near 

the new Electric Operations Center.  Staff was directed to look at options to mitigate concerns and 

provide order of magnitude costs to Council for consideration. 

 

Attachments 

 N/A 



 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

 PO Box 250, Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |   Page 1 of 7 

MEMORANDUM 

 
 
Date: December 31, 2019 
 
To: Drew Havens, Town Manager 
 
From: Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 
 
Re: Work Session 
 Electric Operations Center 
  
 
 
At the November 6th meeting of the Town Council, staff was directed to investigate options and the 

associated magnitude of costs to mitigate certain concerns of the residents living near the new electric 

operations center and to bring back the information to Council for their consideration. Below are things 

the Council wanted evaluated followed by staff’s findings: 

1. Exterior wall cladding for the pole barn on the exterior walls to provide screening on sides facing 
south (toward Milano) and east (facing to Bella Casa HOA). 

Provide independent pierced brick screen wall approximately 16 feet in height.  The total cost is 
estimated to be $300,000 including the design.  Potential examples are shown below. 

      

  



 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

 PO Box 250, Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |  www.apexnc.org Page 2 of 7 

2. Relocating the dumpster away from the eastern border.- 

Relocate dumpster away from the eastern border as generally shown below for a total 
estimated cost of $50,000 including redesign. 

 

3. Reducing the lighting on the sight in addition to shielding and dimmable lights. 

Planning says the light shown below on left inset could be removed; however, CRA does not 
recommend deleting any lights on the sight.  Based on current lighting design, there is no light 
spillover and lights will be shielded. 

    

In addition, the town is reviewing dimming systems (see inset above on right) that could be 
utilized on the site.  The cost for the dimming system ranges between $5,000 and $10,000, and 
it is not currently in the project budget. 

  



 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

 PO Box 250, Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |  www.apexnc.org Page 3 of 7 

4. Fencing other than vinyl coated chain link. 

Provide 8’ dark tan vinyl fence on the west, north and ease sides of the property at an estimated 
additional cost of $360,000.  Alternatively, provide 8’ dark tan vinyl fence on the east side of the 
property only for an estimated additional cost of $125,000. 

5. Additional plantings to create more opacity. 

Provide additional landscaping to increase opaqueness for a total estimated cost of $150,000 
including redesign.  This estimate is based on making improvements along the east side of the 
property as outlined by Planning below:  

If the currently proposed chain link fence is used, do the following: 

 Replace 10 Nellie Stevens with 10 Southern Magnolia (8-10’ tall) planted 10’ on center. 
Additional Wax Myrtles should be planted between these trees if there is adequate 
space. 

 Replace 10 of the 13 Wax Myrtles adjacent to the retaining wall with 10 Green Giant 
Arborvitae (8-10’ tall) planted 6-7’ on center 

 Additional plantings may be required to meet the type A buffer standard and placement 
of plants and trees will need to be coordinated with the zoning compliance officer. 

 
If the chain link fence is replaced with a solid fence 6-8’ tall, the number of Wax Myrtles 
(shrubs) may be reduced by half. The number of trees would remain unchanged. 
 
It is noted that there is no fence proposed along the driveway to the security gate. If the 
fence is added, we suggest the following changes to ensure more opacity above the top of 
the fence:  

 Replace 2 Magnolia Grandiflora with 2 Green Giant Arborvitaes planted per plan 

 Replace 7 Wax Myrtles with 7 Nellie Stevens planted 10’ on center. The remaining 7 wax 
myrtles should be planted between each Nellie Steven.  

6. Construction of a sound wall versus a berm or a fence. 

In lieu of improvements considered in items 1, 2, 4, and 5 above (total estimated cost ranging 
between $625,000 and $860,000), construct 500 linear feet of 15’ tall architectural precast 
screen thin wall (see examples on following page) along the eastern boundary for an estimated 
total cost ranging between $300,00 and $350,000.  The thin wall is projected to reduce 
“highway” noise by 33% at 10 feet tall.  Alternatively, construct a 15’ tall precast concrete sound 
wall (see examples on page 5) for 500 linear feet along the eastern boundary for an estimated 
cost ranging between $510,000 and $560,000.  The sound wall is approximately twice as thick as 
the thin wall and should reduce sound levels more, but the difference has not been quantified.  
The thin wall is recommended by the manufacturer for sites.  The precast concrete sound wall is 
typically used in highway applications. 



 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

 PO Box 250, Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |  www.apexnc.org Page 4 of 7 

  

 
Thin Wall Examples 

  



 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

 PO Box 250, Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |  www.apexnc.org Page 5 of 7 

 
Example of Sound Wall 

 
Example of Sound Wall 

7. Plan in case of an emergency at the facility.  

The electric department is working with fire and police on individual plans for emergencies 
associated with their support. In addition, the town’s Spill Prevention, Control, and 
Countermeasure Plan for Electric Facilities will be updated when the construction of the facility 
is completed to reflect the new retention pond as the closest water source. 

  



 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

 PO Box 250, Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |  www.apexnc.org Page 6 of 7 

8. Theft concerns during and after construction.  

During construction, the site will be secured by the contractor based on standard construction 
practices.  After construction, the facility with be gated and have security cameras installed in 
areas of interest that will be monitored by police as are all town cameras.  Materials of value 
typically stolen at these facilities will be housed in secure locations. 

9. Can bulk chemicals be stored offsite and only have chemicals on site that are immediately 
needed? 

Bulk chemicals could be stored offsite, but other than herbicides, the electric department does 
not store any “bulk” chemicals.  Below is a picture of our existing inventory of herbicides that 
fits in a small locked cabinet and does not exceed 50 gallons total.  The department will order 
chemicals on demand and will have ½ of what is in this picture in the new facility. 

 

10. What is to be stored in the gravel lot at the back of the site? 

The gravel lot in the rear of the facility will be the town’s training facility for linemen. The final 
design of the training facility is not complete, but it will have poles installed for climbing, 
underground pad-mounted and overhead transformers.  A trailer storing equipment and tools 
needed for training will be parked on the lot.  Occasionally, the lot may be used to temporarily 
store deliveries for large projects, but it is not known how often it would be used for this 
purpose. 

11. Policy to only use Milano for ingress and egress.  

Milano is a “Major Collector” road and is designed to handle the larger truck traffic.  It is 
anticipated Milano will be the preferred access for electric operations, and more specifically, 
Milano to Richardson will be the route generally used for large trucks pulling trailers in order to 
avoid the traffic circles.  However, there will be occasions the electric operations will need to 
transverse all roads in Bella Casa for operational / maintenance reasons. 

  



 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

 PO Box 250, Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |  www.apexnc.org Page 7 of 7 

12. Help HOA identify owner of 30’ easement adjacent to the eastern border of the Electric 
Operations Center. 

According to the staff’s research and the known public record, the Deed of Easement was 
recorded on November 7, 2003.  Please refer to Book:  010538  Page:  00849 – 00852. 

Mr. Fred Wallace Jr. (unmarried) conveyed the interest to: 
Charles E Walden 
Theodore Walden Jr. 
Rufus Pernell Walden 
Dorothy M. Richardson 
Anthony Richardson and wife Delois 
Rufus Gray Richardson 
Margaret R. Bland 
Linner E. Richardson 

The referenced deed above calls out these same names and explains the easement interest. 

 
 


	Top
	CN1 Minutes 2019.12.17
	Cover - Minutes
	2019.12.17 Meeting

	CN2 Apex Tax Report
	CS Tax Report
	20200102162225258

	CN3 Appointments - Environmental Adv Board
	CN-Appoint Chair and Vice-Chair to EAB

	CN4 Annexation #672 Iron Gate Subdivision
	Annex672CNCover
	PetitionLegalMaps
	Annexation Petition 672_Clerk Documents

	CN5 Annexation #683 Rossi Property
	Annex683CNCover
	PetitionLegalDescMaps
	Annexation Petition 683_Clerk Documents

	CN6 James Madison Williams House Ordinance
	James Madision Williams House Ordinance Cover Sheet
	James Madison Williams Ordinance

	CN7 Tom Olive House Ordinance
	Tom Olive Ordinance Cover Sheet
	Tom Olive House Ordinance

	CN8 19CZ12 Kissena Lane PUD CN SPH
	CN-SPH 19CZ12 Kissena PUD
	19CZ12 Kissena Lane PUD attachments

	CN9 19CZ20 Blazing Trail CN-S&O
	Cover 19CZ20 Blazing Trail
	19CZ20 Statement
	19CZ20 Ordinance
	19CZ20 Legal Description

	CN10 19CZ24 Upchurch-Williams House CN-SPH
	Cover 19CZ24 Upchurch-Williams House
	#19CZ24 aerial & application

	CN11 Point at Lake Castleberry
	Agenda Cover Point at Lake Castleberry ATT Assumption Agreement
	NCDOT-Town of Apex-Assumption of Sewer Line
	Exhibit A - ATT Encroachment-Executed Agreement

	CN12 Rubin Legal Fees
	CS BUDG ORD AMND NO 9
	BUDG ORD AMND NO. 9

	CN13 Encroachment Agreement - Pittman
	Agenda Cover Sheet Pitmann - 205 Glenvale Street Encroachment Agreement
	signed Pittman - 205 Glenvale Street Encroachment Agreement
	Exhibit A

	CN14 Encroachment Agreement - Lot 6 Hempstead
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet
	signed 1900 Creekside Landing Lot Hempstead at Beaver Creek
	Lot 6 Hempstead Exhibit A

	CN15 Budget Amendment 10
	CS Budget Amend 10.1
	Budget Amendment 10
	CPO 2020-09

	CN16 Water Main Construct Contract
	01 Agenda Item Cover Sheet
	02 Recommendation of Award
	03 Certified Bid Tab
	04 Notice of Award
	05 Bid Package
	06 Agreement

	PH1 Annexation #679 Linden Lot 22 PH
	Annex679PHCover
	Petition679LegalMaps
	Annexation Ordinance 679

	PH2 Annexation #680 The Courtyards on Holt
	Annex680PHCover
	PetitionLegalMaps
	Annexation Ordinance 680

	UB1 Modify Council Meeting Calendar
	UB Meeting Calendar
	Meeting Calendars-Modified 2020

	NB1 Public Art Projects
	NB Agenda Item 1720 Public Art Projects
	Public Art Update Jan 2020

	WS1 Richardson Road Mitigation
	01_Richardson WS

	WS2 Electric Operations
	Electric Operations- Work Session cover sheet 01_07_20
	191231_EOCmitigation_memo_mds

	Bottom

